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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Overview: Good Times Restaurants Inc., a Nevada corporatien“Company”) was organized in 1987. The Compar
essentially a holding company for its wholly owrmdsidiary, Good Times Drive Thru Inc. (“GTDTWhich is engage
in the business of developing, owning, operatind ftanchising hamburger-oriented dritteough restaurants under
name Good Times Burgers & Frozen Custard. Mostwfrestaurants are located in the frostge communities

Colorado but we also have franchised restauraniomh Dakota and Wyoming. The terms “Good Timésgie”, “us”
and “our” where used herein refer to the operataffSTDT and of the Company.

Recent Developments:We experienced fairly dramatic same store saleinds immediately after the beginning of
recession in the spring of 2008 that continuedudiolate spring of 2010 after several consecuteary of same stc
sales increases. Beginning in June 2010 our storeesales trends began to flatten out and theeased for twenty thr
consecutive months through June 2012, includinmenease of 6.2% in fiscal 2011 and an increase1%o in fiscal 201z

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 same storeesaleclined 1%; however we were negatively impadtgdroac
construction and road closures at two locationactdting out the sales declines at the two affelitedtions our san
store sales would have increased approximately In2@te fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 which woulavie been the six
consecutive quarter of same store sales increddesse sales increases have been accomplishedowigh advertisin
expenditures as a percentage of sales as we hioeised our marketing expenditures to moresib@-and trade ar
activities, including new menu boards, point ofghase materials and facility improvements.

During fiscal 2012 we began the reimaging and restiod of older restaurants that includes new signagw exteric
finishes, upgraded lighting, patio enhancementsra@wl graphics design. We anticipate that for auredthrough onl
restaurants, the cost of the reimaging will be apipnately $40,000 per restaurant. Those oldeateants with dinin
rooms will be slightly more and will vary depending the age of the restaurant. We plan to systeatigt apply the
reimaging elements to our older, double drive ttastaurants and select dining room restaurantsighiaut fiscal 201
and 2014, depending on the availability of funds.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2013 we implementedew limited item breakfast menu that we anti@patll generat
incremental sales and additional profitability dgrthe fiscal year. Consistent with our brand tiasiof offering fresh, a
natural, handcrafted products, we elected to cammarket with authentic, Hatch Valley New Mexicogmechile burrito
at a price point of $2 each, which we believe ithkan excellent value for our customer and is lyigtifferentiated fror
any other offerings in the quick service restaurgategory. Because we do not offer a broad basakhenu, we a
highly labor efficient for that day part resultinig a relatively low breakeven point and incrememedfitability. We
anticipate market wide advertising for the new gast in fiscal 2013.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 and after salenonths of development, we began the test afva chicken platfort
centered on All Natural, Hand Breaded Chicken TemdeWe anticipate the system wide rollout in editcal 2012
which will make Good Times the only quick serviestaurant chain in Colorado serving All Naturalftes® chicken wit
no hormones, no steroids, no antibiotics and huipaaéed animals with no animal byproducts infised. We anticipa
increasing our marketing messaging and expenditmmsd this strategic platform in fiscal 2013.

Our Income from Operations improved by $1,247,0@6iscal 2011 compared to fiscal 2010 and by $1@®1,® fisca
2012 compared to fiscal 2011, even in the midstirgfrecedented commodity cost increases. Our doséles, as
percentage of net sales, declined 1.7% comparefiséal 2011 as a result of menu price increasesy peoduc
introductions and rengineering of each category of our menu. Assalr®f the new breakfast day part introduction
anticipate that we will see continued leveragingurf fixed and semi-variable costs for improvedfipewility.

On September 28, 2012, we closed on a private placeof 355,451 shares of Series C Convertibleefed Stock t
Small Island Investments Limited (“SlIfpr an aggregate purchase price of $1,500,0004&2$per share), pursuan
the terms of the Securities Purchase Agreementdagtthe Company and SlI dated June 13, 2012 arpdesnpnted o
September 28, 2012 and October 16, 2012 (colldgtitke “Purchase Agreement”)SIl remains obligated, under -
Purchase Agreement, to close on the purchase adiditional 118,483 shares of Series C Convertibédered Stock, fc
the additional aggregate purchase price of $500(0084.22 per share), on or before March 31, 2@L3uch time as tl
Company’s Board of Directors reasonably determimeth) 45 days’prior notice to SllI, that the Company requires :
funds to maintain the minimum stockholdeesjuity required under NASDAQ Listing Rule 5550(b) £ontinued listin
on The NASDAQ Capital Market. Each share of Se@ieSonvertible Preferred Stock is convertible at dpgion of the
holder into two shares of Common Stock, subjeateidain antidilution provisions. The shares of Series C Cotivie
Preferred Stock will accrue dividends at the rdt®.0% per annum of the original issue price o2®4per share, with such



accrued dividends payable quarterly. In the etkatSeries C Convertible Preferred Stock has neh lmnverted !
Common Stock on or before March 28, 2014, thereditehe rate of the accrued dividends shall inseeto 15.0% p:
annum from March 28, 2014 until converted or redekimethe Company, and (ii) the Company may uporagigroval c
a majority of the disinterested members of the BadrDirectors redeem all or from time to time atfpm of the Series
Convertible Preferred Stock by payment of its litaiion preference. The shares of Series C Coblefireferred Stol
also have additional voting rights, restrictionsl @novisions as disclosed in our Proxy Statemésd fon August 10, 201:

We sold one compangwned restaurant in Loveland, Colorado to an utedl¢hird party. The sale closed on July 9, &
with net proceeds of $605,000 which resulted irf588,000 gain on the sale. We used $300,000 of ¢hepmoceeds
prepay principal on our PFGI Il, LLC note to reledle collateral held by PFGI Il on the propertgttivas sold.

At September 30, 2012 we classified $1,380,000sasta held for sale in the accompanying consotidatdance she:
These costs are related to a site in Firestonepr@dd which has been fully developed. On Novemiier2812 w
completed a sale leaback transaction on the property. The net salsele#ck proceeds of $1,380,000 were us
reduce the PFGI Il term loan by $765,000 and toeiase our working capital.

On November 30, 2012 we purchased the real estaterlying an existing restaurant from our landlwd$760,000. |
connection with the real estate purchase we haterezhinto an additional sale leaseback agreenhantig expected

close in January 2013 and we expect to recognizproeeeds of $870,000. We entered into an amentimehe PFGI

loan agreement whereby we will repay the remaihi@gn balance out of the sale leaseback proceedstfre closing o
this sale leaseback transaction.

On December 5, 2012 we entered into an agreemgnirthase a restaurant from a franchisee for & ¢dtH1,250,00(
including the real estate and operating businesls am anticipated closing date of December 31, 20&2 will pay
$650,000 in cash and issue a short term note dd,$60. We have entered into a sale leasebackragredor the rei
estate that we expect will yield approximately $D,000 in net proceeds by March 31, 2013.

On April 6, 2012, the Company engaged Heathcotet&ldp C (“Heathcote”)to provide the Company with exclus
financial advisory services in connection with agible strategic transaction, which services majude identifying an
contacting potential acquisition targets and/orses of financing for the Company, advising andstisg) the Company
evaluating various structures and forms of anys@ation, assisting in the preparation of proposatsevaluation of offer
and assisting the Company in negotiating the firrspects of the transaction. No such transadttas yet occurred, k
the Company continues to consider possible st@ttgrnatives. Gary J. Heller, a member of thengany's Board ¢
Directors, is the principal of Heathcote. Accoglin the Agreement constitutes a related partystation and we
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee of@oenpany’s Board of Directors.

In fiscal 2012 we sold two Compamperated restaurants and two franchise restauckogsd. Subsequent to Septen
30, 2012, two cobranded test restaurants with Tabms terminated their franchise agreements antbgbhés now limite
to three franchised restaurants in Wyoming and iNDeikota. We continue to evaluate the near tertizedde asset vall
of each restaurant compared to its longer term flash value and we may choose to sell, subleaselase a limite
number of additional lower performing restauramtsiiscal 2013 as we position the company for growtmew stor
development and reposition our stores away frometr@eas that may have shifted demographicallyoon four currer
concept direction. We will require additional dapisources to develop additional companyaed restaurants. \
anticipate that the sale of a limited number of dowolume restaurants will improve our average saies, operatir
margins as a percentage of revenue and may praadk resources for reinvestment into existing uveatds, ne
restaurant development and to increase our wocapgal.

See Financing Activities under the Liquidity andpal Resources section Part Il, Item 7. Managersebiscussion ar
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gytiems below for further details of the transacsidescribed above.

Concept and Business StrategyWe operate with two different formats that haveleed over the course of our histc
a smaller, 880 to 1000 square foot building withodbor seating that is focused on drive thru sernand limited walk L
service; and a 2,400 square foot, 70 seat diniognréormat that has been the model for the lastethir restaurar
developed in Colorado. We have further refinedgiaotype design to reduce development costs mpdove the retul
on investment model for future compaoyned and franchised restaurant expansion witl®@01to 2,000 square foot,
seat dining room design that will carry forwardalthe core design elements of our prior prototgesign.

We operate at the upper end of the quick serviseueant (QSR) category in terms of the qualitpaf ingredients ar
pricing strategy, without a $1 menu or deep distiogn Consumer research has shown us that thiermes feels a stroi
connection to Good Times and feels better aboubgihg Good Times over the larger hamburger QSRdsrae to tr
quality of our ingredients and brand personalits a result we have developed a communicationgeitatcalled



“Happiness Made to Ordewith three primary brand pillars of Innovation, @ityaand Connectedness. All of our proc
initiatives are designed to support a brand positiat adds differentiation to our concept withie fandscape of qui
service restaurant competitors, particularly infthenburger segment. Within Innovation we strivereate products a
flavor profiles available only at Good Times thaattenge QSR norms. Within Quality, our produats supported k
Fresh, All Natural, Handcrafted attributes usinghhuality, regional ingredients. Within Connectesls, we strive
create connections with our customers based oiCtherado lifestyle, local brand partners and comityusupport an
involvement. With the introduction of All Naturdfland Breaded Chicken Tenders in fiscal 2013 Gotes will be th:
only quick service restaurant chain in the regierving All Natural beef and chicken with no hormsneo steroids,
antibiotics and humanely raised animals with nonahibyproducts in the feed.

We continued to make significant product introdoies and modifications in fiscal 2012 with a combima of limited time
offer and permanent product introductions includang280 Lifestyle menu providing lower calorie oiifgs, Sweet Pota
Fries, Summer and Holiday Shakes, Hatch Valley Néxico Green Chile Burritos, Fresh Grilled, Honeyr€li Baco
Burgers and Loaded Fries. During 2013, we plafotois on our new chicken platform, the new breakfiaypart, an
continued improvements in our core menu, inclugiagkaging changes.

While our primary value proposition for the consurisederived from the quality of ingredients andtéaof our product
the current competitive and consumer spending enrient continues to redefine value expectationkimvithe quicl
service restaurant segment and a larger numbeamgéctions are being driven by the availabilityrefnu items at low
price points. Our lower priced options are comsistwith our brand strategy to offer fresh, reandicrafted food wit
unique flavor profiles in our core menu categooéurgers, chicken, fries, frozen custard and fawnproducts and v
continue to evolve our overall menu price rangeailable for our customers, including a lower tigition, a midtier
everyday option and a premium tier for specialydpoicts.

We will continue to focus on elevating the attrimitof our menu items that we believe give us aueigosition il
hamburger quick service restaurantsresh All Natural Angus beef and All Natural Chinkihat is free from hormont
antibiotics and animal byproducts in the feed; Riészen Custard made fresh every few hours inyenestaurant; Fre:
Grilled Honey Cured Bacon; Fresh Squeezed Lemorfaegsh Cut Fries; 100% Breast of Chicken; Freshibe8 Produc
and toppings such as real guacamole and sautéstrooms. We continue to work on the preparaticstesy an
packaging design for our burgers with the goal dfieving a more hot-off-thgrill, cooked to order flavor that is mc
common in fast casual and casual theme conceptsrtiquick service restaurants.

Our core strategies have not changed and we centinfiocus on the following initiatives to maintaiositive sales grow
and improve our profitability:

« Focus on our most important drivers of success:

0 Values. We strive to build and develop behavionsl @&xpectations around what we value 1
throughout the company: integrity, continued imgnoent, customer loyalty and respect for each other.

0 People. We seek to hire high quality people thhoudg and provide them with comprehensive trai
programs to ensure that we deliver consistentlyesap products and service. We offer an incel
program at the restaurant level based on custoraerice, personal development and finar
performance.

o Distinctive quality. We strive to offer unique, ghly distinctive tastes with fresh, high qua
handcrafted ingredients that are all natural ar fof hormones, antibiotics or steroids wher
possible.

0 Excellent systems. We strive to provide the begstesns and processes in every area to fre
management to focus on leading their people.

« Offer high quality, unique menu items that provedeeptional value. Our restaurants feature mesmsitthat ai
unique in the quick service segment, and flavofileothat are associated more with fast casualcasdal ther
restaurants than with fast food. Each menu cayelas signature recipes with fun, irreverent nathas builc
Good Times' nortraditional personality such as Wild Fries with WiDippin Sauce, Big Daddy Bac
Cheeseburger, Mighty Deluxe, BurniBuffalo Chicken and Strawberry Cheesecake AddicBpoonbender. V
continue to make relevant changes to our entireunteteverage our heritage of quality products Emgdositior
the Good Times brand for a more unique and higlffgréntiated consumer experience.

« Establish a unique brand position in quick serviestaurants. We aspire to have Good Times star
“innovative, handcrafted, fresh, all natural foodkey brand support for that includes attributeshsas “Fresh”
“All Natural”, “Fresh Grilled”, “Authentic”, “Handcafted”, and “Fresh Squeezedlith a theme of fres
ingredients and made to order food.



Continually improve our fast, friendly, personaktamer service under our tagline of “Happiness Maderder”.
We strive to optimize and personalize the intecactietween our employees and customers, partigudarihe
points of order and payment, to build a reputatisrhaving the friendliest service. We manage dlee fo fac
interaction with our customers through extensivepleyee screening and hospitality training to ensinei
experience is punctuated by attentive, friendlywiser We have implemented an online screening faridg
system to reduce our hourly employee turnover ainel team members that exhibit good service attai
Additionally, we introduced video training toolkat we believe enhance consistent execution ofqoatity
standards. Speed of service through our drive ldmes is important to the consumensed for convenience, |
is always secondary to delivering the highest gu@ioduct possible. We monitor each saservice time ar
have developed incentive programs for managemehemployees to maintain our quick service standards

Build customer loyalty through a unique brand eigreze. In addition to fast friendly service an@ajrtastin
products, we strive to maintain clean, safe andealipy facilities with a particular emphasis on grbome
landscaping, freshly painted exteriors and mercisargithat highlights the unique product attribudesl flavor
of our products. We believe that everything thetamer sees, smells, hears and feels influencésaheral
impression and the reputation of Good Times antl @@d Times'target customer is seeking more out ¢
quick service restaurant experience.

Build awareness of the Good Times Burgers & FroZestard brand. We believe that Good Times hag
substantial brand equity among our customers aad&eome known for our quality, service and sigmataste:
particularly within the hamburger category. Weided there is significant opportunity to continwebuild tha
reputation within the hamburger category by coritiguo build a stronger overall value propositiord affer ou
new breakfast category outside of Burgers, SidesGustard. Depending on the availability of cdpitaus tc
build out the Colorado market, we plan to sustair onedia advertising and increase our store
communications, augmented by a new Loyalty Prograchsocial media.

Continually improve our employees’ knowledge andfipiency of our core processes. Our customexgerienc
is driven by the ability of our management and ey@és to consistently execute clearly defined peee i
every area of our business. We believe that oyl@rees’abilities and attitudes are directly related to abitity
to provide well designed service, production andraping processes and effective training that alolem t
continually learn, improve and succeed. We tragnt, certify and rérain all employees and management o
of our core operating and management processemtmually improve levels of proficiency.

Current Fiscal Year Initiatives :

1.

Consistently Grow Same Store Sate8Ve will continue to focus on comparable restatirsales driven t
increases in guest counts and increases in thagarguest check. Same store sales increased 13 fi8éal 201
compared to fiscal 2011. We hope to increase goeshts throughout fiscal 2013 through a mfdtiete
approach to continually improve the Good Times Braxperience for our customers by:

« Introducing a new breakfast daypart that we ardigipwill generate incremental sales of at least
consisting of Hatch Valley Green Chile Burritos,Zog Coffee and Orange Juice.

« Introducing a new line of all natural, hand breadbitken tenderloin products making Good Timeschly
quick service restaurant company in Colorado offgall natural beef and chicken raised without hmrer
or antibiotics and vegetarian fed animals.

« Continuing to communicate our core value propositibat is centered on the availability of freshgh
quality, handcrafted products at several diffemitte points across our menu.

« Shifting our marketing communications from solefpddcast media to more store level communicatioa
implementation of new social media initiatives tleaterage our existing customer base.

« Introducing both permanent and limited time produbgat are only available at Good Times.

« Improving our execution on customer service andddlevery of our brand experience through contirmaal
training of all of our employees on our standanuls beightened expectations.

« Continuing to reinvest in our existing facilitiestivreimaging and remodeling.

Reduce our Cost of Saletn fiscal 2012 our food and packaging costs desed by 1.7% of restaurant sales 1
fiscal 2011 and in the fourth quarter they weré®2I@wer than the same period in fiscal 2011. Therekse we
primarily due to menu reengineering within our emtrmenu categories. Our weighted average commodst
remained flat in fiscal 2012 compared to the pyiear. We implemented a cumulative total menu priceease ¢
5.3% during




fiscal 2011 and 1.6% in fiscal 2012. We expect mkenmodest price increases in fiscal 2013 but ipatie large
menu reengineering within our current menu categoaind the addition of a new menu category thatredluce oL
overall cost of sales as a percentage of sales.

3. Improve our Income from Operations by managinggdtdfitability of incremental sales growthIn addition tc
reducing our cost of sales, the highest near testurm on our capital investment and opportunity foofit
improvement is from increasing sales in our exgstiestaurants. Historically, depending on thessatdume ¢
each restaurant, we have experienced a 35% to 36f6 gontribution on incremental sales. By mamagthe
profitability of compounding sales increases, wkelve we can improve our Income from Operationstigh th
operating leverage on existing assets.

4. Pursue Strategic Alternatives We continue to pursue possible additional sgiatalternatives to enhar
shareholder value and leverage our existing Ger&rAldministrative expenses and the costs relateau
operation as a publicly traded entity. The sgwtalternatives may include acquiring developmgtits to al
additional concept for growth, the acquisition nbther operating company, a recapitalization ofGbenpany fc
accelerated growth or some combination of thesategfies. If we can effect one or more of thesetesjie
alternatives, we believe we have the infrastrucininglace to support a larger operating companythedyrowtl
of another concept.

Expansion strategy and site selectioriVe believe that our highest return opportunityoisacus Good Timesjrowth ir
Colorado for operating and marketing efficienciéfeb our existing base of restaurants.

Any new development would involve our new prototypstaurant design on sites that are on or adjaoelbig box o
grocery store anchored shopping centers in highigcand employment areas. Our site selectionrfenw restaurants
oriented toward slightly higher income demograpreas than many of our urban locations and mostiofargeted trac
areas are in relatively high growth areas of thev2e and northern Colorado markets.

We lease most of our sites. When we do purchadedevelop a site, we intend to sell the developedisto the sale-
leaseback market under a long term lease. Oumpyisite objective is to secure a suitable sitéh ¥ie decision to buy
lease as a secondary objective. Our site criteclades a mix of substantial daily traffic, deysif at least 30,000 peo|
within a three mile radius, strong daytime popwolatand employment base, retail and entertainmeffictrgenerator:
good visibility and easy access.

Restaurant locations:We currently operate or franchise a total of thintge Good Times restaurants, of which thisty-
are in Colorado, with thirty five in the greaterri¥er metropolitan area and one in Silverthornee€luof these restaura
are “dual brand”, operated pursuant to a Dual Breest Agreement with Taco Jolsninternational, of which there is ¢
in North Dakota and two in Wyoming.

Denver, CO Colorado, North
Total Greater Metro  Other Wyoming Dakota
Compan-owned & Cc-developec 24 23 1
Franchisec 12 12
Dual brand franchise 3 2 1
39 35 1 2 1

December: 2011 2012
Compan-owned restauran 18 17
Cc-developec 7 7
Franchise operated restaure 20 15

Total restaurant 45 39

In December 2011 a franchisedianchise agreement expired for a restauranttipgrin Boise, Idaho and the franchi
closed the restaurant. Also in December 2011 we soé companypwned restaurant in Littleton, Colorado for casi
April 2012 a franchisee closed a restaurant in 2alo Springs, Colorado as part of our exit front tharket. In July 201
we sold one compangwned restaurant in Loveland, Colorado. In Augustpurchased a restaurant in Loveland, Colc
from the franchisee. In December 2012 a franchiseminated its Good Times franchise agreement éndihal bran
concept and has stopped selling Good Times prodti¢ttgo Colorado locationsWe anticipate that franchisees may c
one low volume franchised restaurants in fiscal28&d we may close one lower volume company oprastaurant
which would result in improved overall operatingrgias and more efficient allocation of overheadreses.



Menu: The menu of a Good Times Burgers & Frozen Cugisthurant is limited to hamburgers, cheeseburghisker
sandwiches, french fries, onion rings, fresh sgeeéemnd frozen lemonades, soft drinks and frozetamiproducts. |
November 2012 we introduced Hatch Valley Green &Bileakfast Burritos, orange juice and coffee. hBaenu item i
made to order at the time the customer placesrtter and is not pre-prepared.

The hamburger patty is made with Meyer All Natufdl,Angus beef, served on a &un. Hamburgers and cheesebur
are garnished with fresh iceberg lettuce, frestedlisweet red onions, mayonnaise, guacamole, @rétdd honey cure
bacon, and proprietary sauces. The chicken preductude a spiced, battered whole muscle bredst pad a grille
seasoned breast patty, both served with mayonnigitece and tomatoes, and Chicken Dunkers, whotadh me:
breaded Tenders. Signature chicken products iede Burnin'Buffalo, Guacamole Bacon Chicken, and 100% w
muscle breast meat Dunkers. Equipment has beematgd and equipped with compensating computedeliver ¢
consistent product and minimize variability in ogtérg systems.

All natural Angus beef is raised without the usey hormones, antibiotics or animal byproducts sina normally used
the open beef market. We believe that all natuesdf ldelivers a better tasting product and, becadishe rigorou
protocols and testing that are a part of the MeyeNAtural Beef processes, may also minimize tble of any foodborne
bacteria-related illnesses.

Fresh frozen custard is a premium ice cream (reguin excess of 10% butterfat content and .4% wgjgs) with ¢
proprietary vanilla blend that is prepared fromhiygspecialized equipment that minimizes the amadirdir that is adde
to the mix and that creates smaller ice crystas thther frozen dairy desserts. The custard ispexb similarly to hard-
packed ice cream but is served at a slightly wartemperature. The resulting product is smootheramier and thick:
than typical soft serve or haphcked ice cream products. Good Times servesalerf custard as vanilla and a flavc
the day in cups and cones, specialty sundaes grabf®enders”a mix of custard and toppings, and we anticipatelii
continue to be a significant percentage of salegeasontinue to develop and promote custard preduct

The breakfast menu is centered around Hatch V&ieen Chile Burritos made with our own proprietgrgen chil
recipe using Hatch Valley New Mexico roasted grelites, eggs, potatoes, and cheese offered witlctibeee of bacol
sausage or chorizo. We also offer a premium caffede by Daz Bog, a Colorado based coffee rozmterpure 100
orange juice.

Marketing & Advertising: Our marketing strategy focuses on: 1) driving caraple restaurant sales through attra
new customers and increasing the frequency ofsvigjtcurrent customers; 2) communicating specifadpct news ar
attributes to build strong points of differencenfrc¢ompetitors; and 3) communicating a unique, stfrand consiste
brand personality.

Media is an important component of building Good &&'rbrand awareness and distinctiveness. We spent ohasti
broadcast advertising dollars on radio media dufiscpl 2012. The Colorado market is an expensieglia market, ¢
most of our advertising placement is not in prineet but in early and late fringe, prime access latel news time slot
As we continue to develop more and more distiectéss to Good Timebrand and increase penetration of the Colc
market, we anticipate we will continue to use medlitvertising to increase overall awareness. Howelging fisce
2012, we reduced our overall advertising expenestand focused more of our marketing funds on dewe and trac
area level communication and activities, suppleeeity social media. During fiscal 2013 we will dane with limitec
broadcast media, a social media presence thatdaffas a higher level of engagement with currentotosrs and ¢
increased level of product giveaways to suppott s@les opportunity products.

Another important component of our marketing e§ag point-of-sale and osite merchandising. We rotate new f
color product point-ofpurchase displays every other month and support pesduct introductions with extens
merchandising. Our restaurants with dining roorasehback-lit and fronlit product displays and product messai
throughout. Menu boards are kept fresh with nevd foplootography and graphics several times througtheuyear.

We plan to continue to be active in digital mediaider to create more customer engagement witlstoel Times bran
We anticipate leveraging our customer email databend website to create cost effective channetarget existin
customers and increase their frequency.

Operations:

Restaurant Management: We have developed a limited number of Operatingnes in a few of our restaurants as
are able to recruit qualified candidates. We belithat this is a distinct competitive advantage tirovides a higher lex
of service, quality control and stability over tim&he objective of the Operating Partner Progranwoihave each partt
develop a relationship with the employees, thearasts and the community at their restaurant andldpvan ownership



mentality with commensurate rewards as sales isere&er a longer period of time. The program al@m Operatir
Partner to earn 25% of a restaurarithprovement in cash flow over an establishedllbeeseEach Good Times restaut
employs an operating partner or a general managerto two assistant managers and approximatetp 25 employee
most of whom work partime during three shifts. An eight to ten weekrtireg program is utilized to train restaur
managers on all phases of the operation. Ongaiaipirig is provided as necessary. We believe theéntive
compensation of our restaurant managers is eskntize success of our business. Accordinglyaddition to a salar
managerial employees may be paid a bonus based pipfiniency in meeting financial, customer servared qualit
performance objectives tied to a monthly scoreadrcheasures. Most of our managers participate imoee traditionz
bonus plan based on their performance against theinthly financial, operating, customer and peogéselopmer
scorecard metrics.

Operational Systems and ProcessesiVe believe that we have high level operating systand processes relative
those in the industry. Detailed processes hava Heeeloped for hourly, daily, weekly and monthigponsibilities thi
drive consistency across our system of restaumrdsperformance against our standards within diffeday parts. W
utilize a labor program to determine optimal staffineeds of each restaurant based on its actutdnoess flow ani
demand. We also employ several additional operatitwols to continuously monitor and improve speédervice, foo
waste, food quality, sanitation, financial managetmend employee development. We are testing a pant of sal
computer system that will improve our ability toayze transaction, sales mix and employee datavtkabelieve ce
decrease our food waste and improve the effectsseakstore level marketing initiatives.

The order system at each Good Times restauramjuipged with an internal timing device that disgland records tl
time each order takes to prepare and deliver. foke transaction time for the delivery of food tae window i
approximately 45 to 75 seconds during peak times.

We use several sources of customer feedback toaeakach restaurastservice and quality performance, including
extensive secret shopper program, customer comphemte line, telephone surveys and website commeékdslitionally.
management uses both its own primary consumerndséar product development and to determine customsage ar
attitude patterns as well as third party marke¢aesh that evaluates Good Timpsrformance ratings on several diffe
operating attributes against key competitors.

Training: We strive to maintain quality and consistency acte of our restaurants through the careful trairamg
supervision of all our employees at all levels d@hd establishment of, and adherence to, high stdedalating t
personnel performance, food and beverage preparatid maintenance of our restaurants. Each mamaggrcomplet
an eight to ten week training program, be certifiédseveral core processes and is then closelynsspe to show bo
comprehension and capability before they are allbbwemanage autonomously. All of our training ateelopment
based upon a “train, test, certify, re-train” cyal®und standards and operating processes avel$leWe conduct a semi-
annual performance review with each manager toudsrior performance and future performance gode have
defined weekly and monthly goal setting processigdduture performance goals. We have a definezklyeand monthl
goal setting process around service, employee dewvelnt, financial management and store maintengoats for ever
restaurant. Additionally we have a library of wideaining tools to drive training efficiencies acmhsistency.

Recruiting and Retention: We seek to hire experienced restaurant manageftsOgerating Partners. We sup|
employees by offering competitive wages and bendfitcluding a 401(k) plan, medical insurance, eneéntive plans
every level that are tied to performance againgt ¢@als and objectives. We motivate and prepareeawployees t
providing them with opportunities for increased p@ssibilities and advancement. We also provideiovar othe
incentives, including vacations, car allowancesnthly performance bonuses and monetary rewardsnforagers wt
develop future managers for our restaurants. We maplemented an online screening and hiring that has proven
reduce hourly employee turnover by more than 50%.

Franchising: Good Times has prepared prototype area rightsrandhise agreements, a Uniform Franchise Discé
Document (“UFDD”) and advertising material to be utilized in soliuii prospective franchisees. We seek to a
franchisees that are experienced restaurant opgratell capitalized and have demonstrated thetwltd develop one -
five restaurants. We review sites selected fardinisses and monitor performance of franchise uniég are not current
soliciting new franchisees and will not do so unébital becomes more available and we have reg@reater same st
sales momentum.

We estimate that it will cost a franchisee on agerapproximately $750,000 to $1,100,000 to operstaurant with dinir
room seating, including prepening costs and working capital, assuming the lafeased. A franchisee typically will
a royalty of 4% of net sales, an advertising materfee of at least 1.5% of net sales, plus pggt@n in region:
advertising up to an additional 4% of net sales bigher amount approved by the advertising cadjpyer;, and initial



development and franchise fees totaling $25,000r@staurant. Among the services and materials lwhie provide t
franchisees are site selection assistance, plahspertifications for construction of the Good TinBaggers and Froz
Custard restaurants, an operating manual whichdes product specifications and quality controcpdures, training, on-
site opening supervision and advice from timenwetrelating to operation of the franchised restatsgra

After a franchise agreement is signed, we activatyk with and monitor our franchisees to ensurecessful franchis
operations as well as compliance with Good Timestesys and procedures. During the development phasassist i
the selection of sites and the development of pypto and building plans, including all required hes by loc:
municipalities and developers. We provide an apgrieam of trainers to assist in the opening of rdstaurant ar
training of the employees. We advise the franehie®m menu, management training, marketing, and @raf
development. On an ongoing basis we conduct stdsdaviews of all franchise restaurants in keysaiacluding produ
quality, service standards, restaurant cleanlinadssanitation, food safety and people development.

We have entered into twelve franchise agreementiseirgreater Denver metropolitan area. Twelvednése restaurar
and seven jointenture restaurants are operating in the Denveropetitan area media market. Dual branded fresex
restaurants operate in Gillette and Sheridan, Wiggmrand Bismarck, North Dakota.

Management Information Systems: Financial and management control is maintainedutin the use of automated ¢
processing and centralized accounting and managenfermation systems that we provide. Sales, lava cash data
collected daily via a restaurant back office systermich gathers data from the restaurant poirgadé syster
Management receives daily, weekly and monthly rspatentifying food, labor and operating expensaes athe
significant indicators of restaurant performaniée believe that these reporting systems are sigdtistl and enhance «
ability to control and manage operations.

Food Preparation, Quality Control & Purchasing: We believe that we have excellent food qualitndéads relative
the quick service restaurant industry. Our systamesdesigned to protect our food supply throughbat preparatic
process. We inspect specific qualified manufactuasd work together with those manufacturers twige specificatior
and quality controls. Our operations managemeamsgeare trained in a comprehensive safety andasianitcours
provided by the National Restaurant AssociationniMum cook temperature requirements and line chéoksighout th
day ensure the safety and quality of both burgedsagher items we use in our restaurants.

We currently purchase 100% of our restaurant fowt@aper supplies from Food Services of Americar{éaly Yancey:
Food Service). We do not believe that the curreliance on this sole vendor will have any Idegn material adver
effect since we believe that there are a sufficremhber of other suppliers from which food and paqeplies could k
purchased. We do not anticipate any difficultycontinuing to obtain an adequate quantity of fond paper supplies
acceptable quality and at acceptable prices.

Employees: At December 17, 2012, we had approximately 400leyegs of which 337 are part time hourly emplo
and 63 are salaried employees working full timee s@nsider our employee relations to be good. Ndrair employee
are covered by a collective bargaining agreement.

Competition: The restaurant industry, including the fast foedreent, is highly competitive. Good Times competits
a large number of other hamburgerented fast food restaurants in the areas in lwliticoperates. Many of the
restaurants are owned and operated by regionalnatidnal restaurant chains, many of which have tgrefinancia
resources and experience than we do. Restaunaptacoes that currently compete with Good TimesiemDenver mark
include McDonald's, Burger King, Wendy's, Carl’'s $onic and Jack in the Box. Double drieeugh restaurant cha
such as Rally's Hamburgers and Checker's Driveestdirants, which currently operate a total of @@ double drive-
through restaurants in various markets in the dn8tates, are not currently operating in Colora@alver's and Freddy’
are the only significant competitors offering frazeustard as a primary menu item operating in teev@r and Colorac
Springs markets and both have a significant presancMidwestern markets that may be targeted foraegpn
Additional “fast casualhamburger restaurants are being developed in th@dim market, such as Smashburger and
Guys; however, they do not have driteeugh service and generate an average per petsmk that is approximate
50% higher than Good Times’ average check.

We believe that we may have a competitive advantagerms of quality of product compared to traahiil fast foo
hamburger chains. Early development of our doualiee-through concept in Colorado has given us an adgentae
other double drivehrough chains that may seek to expand into Cototaetause of our brand awareness and pi
restaurant locations. Nevertheless, we may becangetitive disadvantage to other restaurant shaith greater nan
recognition and marketing capability. Furthermanest of our competitors in the fast-food busingssrate more
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restaurants, have been established longer, anddnester financial resources and name recognitian e do. There
also active competition for management personrelwall as for attractive commercial real estatessisuitable fc
restaurants.

Trademarks: Good Times has registered its mark "Good Time&veDThru Burgers"(SM) with the State of Colore
We have also registered our mark “Good Times Busr§eFrozen Custard” federally and with the St&t€olorado.

Good Times received approval of its federal regt&in of "Good Times" in 2003. In addition we owademarks ¢
service marks that have been registered, or forchviaipplications are pending, with the United Staegent an
Trademark Office including but not limited to: “5@8.ifestyle Menu”, “Big Daddy Bacon CheeseburgerChicker
Dunkers”, “Happiness Made To Order”, “Mighty Deluxé'Mile High Sliders”, “Pawbender”, "Spoonbender'Wild
Fries”, and “Wild Dippin’ Sauce”. Our trademarkspie between 2013 and 2018.

Government Regulation: Each Good Times restaurant is subject to the a¢ignk of various health, sanitation, sa
and fire agencies in the jurisdiction in which ttestaurant is located. Difficulties or failures abtaining the require
licenses or approvals could delay or prevent treniogg of a new Good Times restaurant. Federaktatd environment
regulations have not had a material effect on garations. More stringent and varied requirementsasl government
bodies with respect to zoning, land use and enmiaortal factors could delay or prevent developménew restaurants
particular locations. We are subject to the Faibdr Standards Act, which governs such matters ingnum wages
overtime, and other working conditions. In additive are subject to the Americans With Disab#ithect, which require
restaurants and other facilities open to the pubdicprovide for access and use of facilities by trendicappe:
Management believes that we are in compliance thvélAmericans With Disabilities Act.

We are also subject to federal and state laws a¢iggl franchise operations, which vary from registm and disclosu
requirements in the offer and sale of franchisebecapplication of statutory standards regulafragchise relationships.

Available Information: Our Internet website address is www.goodtimesbsrgem. We make available free of chi
through our website’s investor relations informatiection our annual reports on FormK,0guarterly reports on Fol
10-Q, current reports on Formkg-and any amendments to those reports filed witHuonished to the SEC unc
applicable securities laws as soon as reasonabtfipal after we electronically file such matemath, or furnish it to, th
SEC. Our website information is not part of ordrgorated by reference into this Annual Report om#10-K.

Special Note About Forward-Looking Statements:From time to time the Company makes oral and enigtatemen
that reflect the Company's current expectationsndigg future results of operations, economic pentoce, financii
condition and achievements of the Company. A foddaoking statement is neither a prediction nor argogee of futur
events. We try, whenever possible, to identify ¢hésrwardlooking statements by using words such as "antiejf
"assume," "believe," "estimate," "expect," "inteéhthlan," "project,” "may," "will," "would," and snilar expressior
Certain forward-looking statements are includedhis Form 10K, principally in the sections captioned "Descptiol
Business," and "Management's Discussion and Anabfsisinancial Condition and Results of Operation&.drward-
looking statements are related to, among othegshin

business objectives and strategic plans;

operating strategies;

our ability to open and operate additional restaigrarofitably and the timing of such openings;

restaurant and franchise acquisitions;

anticipated price increases;

expected future revenues and earnings, comparatila@eomparable restaurant sales, results of opere

and future restaurant growth (both company-ownetifeanchised);

« estimated costs of opening and operating new nesttsj including general and administrative, mankg
franchise development and restaurant operating;cost

« anticipated selling, general and administrativeezges and restaurant operating costs, includingroutity
prices, labor and energy costs;

« future capital expenditures;

0 our expectation that we will have adequate casim foperations and credit facility borrowings
meet all future debt service, capital expendituré working capital requirements in fiscal year 2|

o the sufficiency of the supply of commodities anlddapool to carry on our business;

0 success of advertising and marketing activities;

o the absence of any material adverse impact arisuigof any current litigation in which we
involved;

0 impact of the adoption of new accounting standams our financial and accounting systems
analysis programs;
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0 expectations regarding competition and our comipet#dvantages;
0 impact of our trademarks, service marks, and gihaprietary rights; and
o effectiveness of our internal control over finaheceporting.

Although we believe that the expectations reflectedour forwardlooking statements are based on reaso
assumptions, such expectations may prove to beriadténcorrect due to known and unknown risks amgertainties.

In some cases, information regarding certain ingmtrfactors that could cause actual results t@diffaterially from ar
forward{ooking statements appears together with such mstate In addition, the factors described underticad
Accounting Policies and Estimates in Part Il, Itépand Risk Factors in Part |, Item 1A, as welbtger possible factc
not listed, could cause actual results to diffetemally from those expressed in forwdabking statements, includir
without limitation, the following: concentration @éstaurants in certain markets and lack of maakedreness in ne
markets; changes in disposable income; consumadspetrends and habits; increased competitiorhénduick servic
restaurant market; costs and availability of foaw ébeverage inventory; our ability to attract giiedi manager
employees, and franchisees; changes in the avaitadfi capital or credit facility borrowings; castand other effects
legal claims by employees, franchisees, custormergjors, stockholders and others, including sedtteérof those claim
effectiveness of management strategies and desjsweather conditions and related events in regwhsre ou
restaurants are operated; and changes in accowtéindards policies and practices or related irgeapons by auditors
regulatory entities.

All forward-looking statements speak only as of thete made. All subsequent written and oral foddaoking
statements attributable to us, or persons actingwnbehalf, are expressly qualified in their esttirby the cautiona
statements. Except as required by law, we undentak obligation to update any forwdmbking statement to refle
events or circumstances after the date on whiishnitade or to reflect the occurrence of anticipatednanticipated ever
or circumstances.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should consider carefully the following riskctars before making an investment decision withpees to th
Company’s securities. You are cautioned that thiefactors discussed below are not exhaustive.

We have accumulated losse$Ve have incurred losses in every fiscal year sinception except 1999, 2002, 2006
2007. As of September 30, 2012 we had an accuedueficit of $18,457,000. We cannot assure yai We will no
have a loss for the current fiscal year ending Saper 30, 2013.

We must sustain same store sales increaséd/e must sustain same store sales increases tingxigstaurants to sust
profitability and we experienced declines in ounsastore sales in fiscal 2008, fiscal 2009 anditheten months of fisc
2010. Sales increases will depend in part on tieeess of our advertising and promotion of new exigting menu iten
and consumer acceptance. We cannot assure thatieentising and promotional efforts will in fae buccessful.

New restaurants, when and if opened, may not be pfitable, if at all, for several months. We anticipate that our n¢
restaurants, when and if opened, will generallyetaleveral months to reach normalized operatingldedee t
inefficiencies typically associated with new resgis, including lack of market awareness, the reetire and train
sufficient number of employees, operating costsiclvtare often materially greater during the firsvaral months «
operation than thereafter, pogening costs and other factors. In additionawgsints opened in new markets may op
lower average weekly sales volumes than restaugpesed in existing markets, and may have highetaveantevel
operating expense ratios than in existing mark&ales at restaurants opened in new markets mayldager to reac
average annual company-owned restaurant saldsalif thereby affecting the profitability of thesestaurants.

Our operations are susceptible to the cost of andhanges in food availability which could adversely féect our
operating results. Our profitability depends in part on our ability @nticipate and react to changes in food costriou:
factors beyond our control, including adverse weatonditions, governmental regulation, productevgilability, recall
of food products and seasonality may affect oudfoosts or cause a disruption in our supply ch#ife enter into annu
contracts with our chicken and other miscellanesuspliers. Our contracts for chicken are fixecc@rcontracts. O
contracts for beef are generally based on curremket prices plus a processing fee. Changes iprtbe or availability c
chicken or beef or other commodities could matsriativersely affect our profitability. We cannatedict whether w
will be able to anticipate and react to changingdf@osts by adjusting our purchasing practicesraedu prices, and
failure to do so could adversely affect our opetiesults. In addition, because we provide austiced" product, w
may not be able to pass along price increasesrtgumsts.
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The macroeconomic recession could affect our operag results. The current state of the economy and decre
consumer spending may adversely affect our salethanfuture. A proliferation of heavy discountithy our majo
competitors may also negatively affect our salesaperating results.

Price increases may impact guest visitsWe may make price increases on selected menu itenasder to offse
increased operating expenses we believe will berreg. Although we have not experienced significaonsume
resistance to our past price increases, we camowide assurance that this or other future priceeiases will not det
guests from visiting our restaurants or affectrtperchasing decisions.

The hamburger restaurant market is highly competitve. The hamburger restaurant market is highly competitiOu
competitors include many recognized national argloral fastfood hamburger restaurant chains such as McDor
Burger King, Wendy's, Carl's Jr., Sonic, Jack ia Box and Culver's. We also compete with smalloreg and loc:
hamburger and other fast-food restaurants, manyhath feature driveahrough service. Most of our competitors
greater financial resources, marketing programsrerde recognition. All of the major hamburger alsahave offere
selected food items and combination meals at digeduprices. Discounting by competitors may adlgraffect th
revenues and profitability of our restaurants.

Sites may be difficult to acquire.Location of our restaurants in higtaffic and readily accessible areas is an impt
factor for our success. Drivbrough restaurants require sites with specifiaattaristics and there are a limited nun
of suitable sites available in our geographic merk&ince suitable locations are in great demanithe future we may n
be able to obtain optimal sites at a reasonable dasaddition, we cannot assure you that thessite do obtain will £
successful.

We will require additional financing. In order to fully develop the Denver market anégtkpand into markets outside
Colorado, we will require additional financing. Wannot assure you that we will be able to accefgignt capital t
adequately finance our operations and our planreceldpments or that additional financing will beagable oi
reasonable terms. The current economic environ@uethtstatus of the capital markets may adversédetadur ability tc
acquire additional debt or equity financing for Wiog capital, new restaurant development, or refoieg of existin
funding agreements.

If our franchisees cannot develop or finance new staurants, build them on suitable sites or open thm on schedule
our growth and success may be impededUnder our current form of area development agregrsmme franchise
must develop a predetermined number of restausntigrding to a schedule that lasts for the terrtheir developmel
agreement. Franchisees may not have access téinireial or management resources that they needpenm th
restaurants required by their development schedotemay be unable to find suitable sites on whildevelop then
Franchisees may not be able to negotiate acceptedde or purchase terms for the sites, obtainghessary permits
government approvals or meet construction schediifesm time to time in the past, we have agreeektend or modif
development schedules and we may do so in theefutAny of these problems could slow our growth asduce ot
franchise revenues.

Additionally, our franchisees depend upon finandirmgn banks and other financial institutions in @rdo construct ar
open new restaurants. Difficulty in obtaining adatg financing adversely affects the number arel shinew restaura
openings by our franchisees and adversely affestfuture franchise revenues.

Our franchisees could take actions that could harnour business. Franchisees are independent contractors and ¢
our employees. We provide training and supportfrémchisees; however, franchisees operate thetauemts ¢
independent businesses. Consequently, the qudlftanchised restaurant operations may be dimaadby any numb
of factors beyond our control. Moreover, franchsenay not successfully operate restaurants innmenaonsistent wi
our standards and requirements, or may not hiretrai qualified managers and other restaurantopeed. Our imac
and reputation, and the image and reputation oérofanchisees, may suffer materially, and systéde sales cou
significantly decline, if our franchisees do notcgite successfully.

We depend on key management employeé&le believe our current operations and future sicdepend largely on t
continued services of our management employegsmriicular Boyd E. Hoback, our president and chiedcutive officel
and Scott Lefever, our vice president of operatioAthough we have entered into an employmentegent with Mr
Hoback, he may voluntarily terminate his employmeith us at any time. In addition, we do not maintkeypersoi
insurance on Messrs. Hoback’s or Lefever’s life.eTlhss of Messrs. Hoback's or Lefewerservices, or other k
management personnel, could have a material ade#fes# on our financial condition and results peaations.

Labor shortages could slow our growth or harm our lusiness.Our success depends in part upon our ability @t
motivate and retain a sufficient number of quatifiigh-energy employees. Qualified individualeaed to fill these
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positions are in short supply in some areas. Tability to recruit and retain these individualsyrdelay the planne
openings of new restaurants or result in high eggdaturnover in existing restaurants, which couddni our busines
Additionally, competition for qualified employeesuld require us to pay higher wages to attradicseft employee:
which could result in higher labor costs. Most af employees are paid on an hourly basis. The @rapk are paid
accordance with applicable minimum wage regulatiohscordingly, any increase in the minimum wagéether state «
federal, could have a material adverse impact orbosiness.

Nevada law and our articles of incorporation and biaws have provisions that discourage corporate takeers anc
could prevent stockholders from realizing a premiumon their investment. We are subject to ant&keover laws fc
Nevada corporations. These -takeover laws prevent a Nevada corporation fromagimg in a business combinat
with any stockholder, including all affiliates amdsociates of the stockholder, who owns 10% or robtiee corporatiore
outstanding voting stock, for three years followthg date that the stockholder acquired 10% or rabtbke corporatiors
voting stock, unless specified conditions are met.

Our articles of incorporation and our bylaws camt@inumber of provisions that may deter or impattedvers or chang
of control or management. These provisions:

« authorize our Board of Directors to establish onenore series of preferred stock the terms of witah b
determined by the Board of Directors at the timéssfiance;

« do not allow for cumulative voting in the electiai directors unless required by applicable law. dél
cumulative voting a minority stockholder holdingufficient percentage of a class of shares maybleeta ensut
the election of one or more directors;

« state that special meetings of our stockholders beagalled only by the chairman of the board thesidlent ¢
any two directors and must be called by the presidpon the written request of the holders of tercent of th
outstanding shares of capital stock entitled t@\attsuch special meeting; and

« provide that the authorized number of directorsasnore than seven as determined by our BoardretCirs.

These provisions, alone or in combination with eatier, may discourage transactions involving dctwapotentia
changes of control, including transactions thaentlise could involve payment of a premium over pikivg market price
to stockholders for their common stock.

We have a controlling stockholder. Small Island Investments Limited (“SlIHeneficially owns approximately 50.8%
our outstanding Common Stock and controls approbein#0.9% of the total voting shares through itsership of oL
outstanding Series C Convertible Preferred StoBK. also has veto rights with respect to certainoma&orporat
transactions by virtue of the terms of its SerieG@vertible Preferred Stock. In addition, SlI tae right, for so long
it owns more than 50% of our outstanding capitatistto designate a majority of our Board of Dicest SlI therefore h.
the ability to alter the strategic direction andzapital structure of the Company.

Future changes in financial accounting standards macause adverse unexpected operating results andfexdt our
reported results of operations. Changes in accounting standards can have a sigmnifeffect on our reported results
may affect our reporting of transactions complétefbre the change is effective. See Note 1 tadGmnsolidated Financi
Statements for further discussion. New pronouncgsnand varying interpretations of pronouncemeatigeloccurred at
may occur in the future. Changes to existing ralesliffering interpretations with respect to owrrent practices mi
adversely affect our reported financial results.

Our NASDAQ Listing Is Important. Our Common Stock is currently listed for tradingtbe NASDAQ Capital Marke
The NASDAQ maintenance rules require, among dtfiags, that our common stock price remains abdveGper sha
and that we have minimum stockholders’ equity ab$8illion. During fiscal 2012, we received noticenon-complianc:
with the minimum stockholdergquity requirement for continued listing on the N&¥SQ Capital Market. The closing
our private placement transaction with Sll on Setiiter 28, 2012 has allowed the Company to regaimptiante with th
minimum stockholdersequity requirement. In addition, Sll has agreeguocchase an additional 118,483 shares of ¢
C Convertible Preferred Stock, for an additionajragate purchase price of $500,000 (or $4.22 paeyhon or befol
March 31, 2013, at such time as the Company’s Bo&idirectors reasonably determines, with 45 day#r notice t¢
SllI, that the Company requires such funds to mairitee minimum stockholderg€quity requirement for continued listi
on the NASDAQ Capital Market.

We are subject to extensive government regulationhat may adversely hinder or impact our ability to gvern
various aspects of our business including our abili to expand and develop our restaurants.The restaurant indus
is subject to various federal, state and local guwent regulations, including those relating toshk of food. While in
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the past we have been able to obtain and mairtieimécessary governmental licenses, permits ano\agg, our failur
to maintain these licenses, permits and approvwat$yding food licenses, could adversely affect operating result
Difficulties or failures in obtaining the requirdidenses and approvals could delay or result indaeision to cancel tl
opening of new restaurants. Local authorities sugpend or deny renewal of our food licenses i thetermine that o
conduct does not meet applicable standards oeiietare changes in regulations.

Various federal and state labor laws govern ouwati@iship with our employees and affect operatiogt€ These lav
govern minimum wage requirements, such as thod tonposed by recently enacted legislation in Galor overtim
pay, meal and rest breaks, unemployment tax rategsers' compensation rates, citizenship or resiglgequirement
child labor regulations and sales taxes. Additig@vernmentimposed increases in minimum wages, overtime paigl
leaves of absence and mandated health benefitsnor@ase our operating costs.

The federal Americans with Disabilities Act protigbdiscrimination on the basis of disability in flakaccommodatior
and employment. Although our restaurants are desido be accessible to the disabled, we couldegeined to mak
modifications to our restaurants to provide sertiger make reasonable accommodations for, didgi#esons.

We are also subject to federal and state lawsrtwilate the offer and sale of franchises and &spwcthe licensor-
licensee relationship. Many state franchise lawgoise restrictions on the franchise agreement, dimofulimitations ol
non-competition provisions and the termination entenewal of a franchise. Some states require thathise materic
be registered before franchises can be offeredl|dris the state.

Compliance with changing regulation of corporate geernance and public disclosure may result in additnal
expenses.Keeping abreast of, and in compliance with, chagdaws, regulations and standards relating to araig
governance and public disclosure, including thebSaesOxley Act of 2002, new SEC regulations and The NAS]
Market rules, has required an increased amount afagement attention and expense. We remain conamit
maintaining high standards of corporate governamzk public disclosure. As a result, we intendnteest all reasonak
necessary resources to comply with evolving statgjand this investment has resulted in and wititiooe to result i
increased general and administrative expenses digision of management time and attention fromemeiegeneratin
activities to compliance activities.

Risks related to internal controls. Public companies in the United States are requaaéview their internal controls
set forth in the Sarban&xley Act of 2002. It should be noted that anytegs of controls, however well designed
operated, can provide only reasonable, and notl@bs@ssurance that the objectives of the systenmat. In additiol
the design of any control system is based in gaohicertain assumptions about the likelihood affeievents. Because
these and other inherent limitations of controktsyss, there can be no assurance that any desigsuedeed in achievii
its stated goals under all potential future cond#i, regardless of how remote. If the internakmms put in place by us ¢
not adequate or in conformity with the requiremenitgshe Sarbane®xley Act of 2002, and the rules and regulat
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Comonissie may be forced to restate our financial statgs and tal
other actions which will take significant financiahd managerial resources, as well as be subjefihge and othe
government enforcement actions.

Health concerns relating to the consumption of begfchicken or other food products could affect consuer
preferences and could negatively impact our resultef operations. Like other restaurant chains, consumer prefert
could be affected by health concerns about thenawftuenza, also known as bird flu, or the constiampof beef, the ke
ingredient in many of our menu items, or negatiuéligity concerning food quality, illness and injugenerally, such «
negative publicity concerning E. coli, "mad cow" 'oot-andmouth” disease, publication of government or ingh
findings concerning food products served by ugtber health concerns or operating issues stemfrong one restaura
or a limited number of restaurants. This negapiublicity may adversely affect demand for our feodl could result in
decrease in guest traffic to our restaurants. elfreact to the negative publicity by changing aumaept or our menu v
may lose guests who do not prefer the new conaeptemu, and may not be able to attract a suffiaemt guest base
produce the revenue needed to make our restaupaofitable. In addition, we may have different additiona
competitors for our intended guests as a resudt cdncept change and may not be able to competessfally again
those competitors. A decrease in guest trafficuiorestaurants as a result of these health comeemegative publicity «
as a result of a change in our menu or conceptiaoaterially harm our business.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We currently lease approximately 3,700 square fdetspace for our executive offices in Golden, Cattr fo
approximately $58,000 per year under a lease agneewhich expires in December 2012 and we antieipatending tr
lease beyond 2012. The space is leased from THeyB@bmpany, a significant stockholder in the Compaat thei
corporate headquarters.

As of December 15, 2012, Good Times has an owrnemstarest in twentfeur Good Times units, all of which are loce
in Colorado. Seven of these restaurants are heddjaint venture limited partnership of which Gobidhes is the genel
partner. Good Times has a 50% interest in sikefpartnership restaurants and a 78% interestdarrestaurant. There i
seventeen Good Times units that are wholly owneGbgd Times.

Most of our existing Good Times restaurants aremabioation of freestanding structures containing approximately 8¢
1,000 square feet for the double drive thru foramat approximately 2,400 square feet for our prg@etyuilding with a 7
seat dining room. In addition, we have severdbrgants that are conversions from other concepiarious sizes rangi
from 1,700 square feet to 3,500 square feet. Tiidibgs are situated on lots of approximately 08,80 50,000 squa
feet. Certain restaurants serve as collaterathferunderlying debt financing arrangements as dili in the Notes
Consolidated Financial Statements included inriyort. We intend to acquire new sites both thhoggound leases a
purchase agreements supported by mortgage andhéddi$imancing arrangements and through sale-lea$edgreements.

All of the restaurants are regularly maintainedolby repair and maintenance staff as well as byiadeitsontractors, whe
necessary. We believe that all of our propertiesia good condition and that there will be a némdperiodic capite
expenditures to maintain the operational and agstiegrity of our properties for the foreseealfilgure, includin
recurring maintenance and periodic capital improzets. All of our properties are covered up to aepment cost unc
our property and casualty insurance policies artHeropinion of management are adequately coveréashrance.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not involved in any material legal procegdinWe are subject, from time to time, to varitavesuits in the norm
course of business. These lawsuits are not expézteave a material impact.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable
PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Shares of our Common Stock are listed for tradingttee NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “GTIMThe
following table presents the quarterly high and lma prices for our Common Stock as reported byNASDAQ Capita
Market for each quarter within the last two fiscahys. The quotations reflect interdealer pricadout retail markaps
mark-downs or commissions and may not represenabiransactions.

2011 2012
QUARTER ENDED HIGH LOW QUARTER ENDED HIGH LOW
December 31, 201 $3.0C $1.5¢€ December 31, 201 $1.65 $1.0¢
March 31, 201: $4.7:  $1.8C March 31, 201: $145 $ 91
June 30, 201 $2.4¢ $1.6¢ June 30, 201 $50C $ .9C

September 30, 201 $1.8¢ $1.3¢ September 30, 201 $22C $1.2¢

As of December 17, 2012 there were approximately I#flders of record of our Common Stock. Howewsnageme|
estimates that there are not fewer than 1,300 mésledwners of our Common Stock.

As of December 17, 2012 all of our outstanding&e@ Convertible Preferred Stock is held by SII.

Dividend Policy : We have never paid dividends on our Common Stuk do not anticipate paying dividends in
foreseeable future. In addition, we have obtaifireghcing under loan agreements that restrict gngment of dividend
Further, the Series C Convertible Preferred Stimaacing agreements provide for the payment oidéinds on our Seri
C
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Convertible Preferred Stock and restrictions onggment of dividends on our Common Stock. Oulitgtib pay future
dividends will necessarily depend on our earningd financial condition. However, since restaurdavelopment
capital intensive, we currently intend to retaily @arnings for that purpose.

Cash dividends of $120,000 per year are payabletgrliaon our outstanding shares of Series C CdillerPreferre
Stock (which is 8.0% per annum of the original &sguice of $4.22 per share), with such paymentsetmade on AugL
15, November 15, February 15, and May 15 of eaah, yeeginning February 15, 2013. In the event titstanding shar:
of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock have nentmnverted to Common Stock before March 28, 2fteafter (i
the amount of dividends payable will increase t8%Q00 per year (which is 15.0% per annum of thgiral issue pric
of $4.22 per share) from March 28, 2014 until coteetor redeemed by the Company, and (ii) the Compaay upon th
approval of a majority of the disinterested memluérthe Board of Directors redeem all or from titoetime a portion ¢
the Series C Convertible Preferred Stock by payrokits liquidation preference.

Recent Sales of Unregistered SecuritiesAs previously disclosed in the Company’s curmeort on Form & filed on
October 1, 2012, on September 28, 2012, the Compampleted the sale and issuance of 355,451 slofr8sries (
Convertible Preferred Stock to Sl for an aggregatechase price of $1,500,000 (or $4.22 per shpteyuant to the terr
of the Purchase Agreement. The terms of the PsecAgreement and of the Series C Convertible RegfeBtock wet
disclosed in the Company'’s current reports on Féifiled on June 19, 2012, September 20, 2012, Get@b2012, ar
October 16, 2012 and in the CompaniProxy Statement filed on August 10, 2012. Then@any received gross proce
of $1,500,000 in the transaction, which were usegday related transaction expenses, to pay thesVWaltgo Note ar
related interest rate swap in full, and to prowdeking capital.

The shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Ssotit to Sl (the “Series C Sharesfjere not registered under
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “SecurfietS), or state securities laws, and neither the Seri&h&es nor tt
shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversioth@fSeries C Shares (together with the Series GeShh
“Securities”)ymay be resold in the United States in the absehea effective registration statement filed witle tSEC ¢
an available exemption from the applicable federad state registration requirements. In the Peehfgreement, S
represented to the Company that: (a) it is an ddeet investor, as such term is defined in Rule 60Regulation [
promulgated under the Securities Act; (b) it acegiithe Securities as principal for its own accdantnvestment purpos
only and not with a view to or for distributing meselling the Securities or any part thereof; arjdt(is knowledgeabl
sophisticated and experienced in making, and dedlifo make, decisions with respect to investmémtsecuritie
representing an investment decision similar to imablved in the purchase of the Securities. Tlen@any has relied
the exemption from the registration requirementshef Securities Act set forth in Section 4(2) tioérand the rules ai
regulations there-under for the purposes of thestretion with SlI.

Disclosure with Respect to the Company’s Equity Copensation Plans: We maintain the 2008 Omnibus Eqi
Incentive Compensation Plan, pursuant to which ves grant equity awards to eligible persons, ancehawtstandin
stock options granted under our 2001 Good TimegaRemts Stock Option Plan, 1992 Incentive StockddpPlan an
1992 NonStatutory Stock Option Plan. Pursuant to stockémolipproval in September 2012 the total numbehafes
available for issuance under the 2008 plan wagasad to 500,000. For additional information, seeNO, Stockholders’
Equity, in the Notes to the Consolidated FinanSiatements included in this report. The followiaglé gives informatic
about equity awards under our plans as of Septe8the2012.

Equity Compensation Plan Information:
(@ (b) (c)
Number of securities remaining
Number of securities to Weighted-average available for future issuance
be issued upon exercis exercise price of under equity compensation
of outstanding options, outstanding options, plans (excluding securities

Plan category warrants & rights warrants & rights reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plai

approved by security holders- 175,289 $6.18 324,711
options

Total 175,288 $6.18 324,711
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

The selected financial data on the following paaresderived from our historical financial statensesmd is qualified in i
entirety by such financial statements which aréuighed in Item 8 hereof.

The Company analyzes its operations on a regiamsbwhen evaluating closed restaurant operat@ronsideration
to the classification between continuing operati@msl discontinued operations. Prior to fiscal 2@hé Compan
evaluated operations at the restaurant level.slmeievaluation the Company determined that as ofodte Company
restaurants are within the Denver metropolitanaregind share common advertising, distribution, srgien, and to
certain extent even customers, the Company belieegpropriate to perform its analysis on a regidyasis. During 20!
the Company closed two restaurants and in 201Z¢mepany closed an additional two restaurants. offegations relate
to these restaurants are reflected as part ofreong operations as they were within one continwipgrating region.

The following presents certain historical finandialormation of the Company. This financial infation includes tr
combined operations of the Company and its subrgida@ the fiscal years ended September 30, 20080tt2. Certai
prior year balances have been reclassified to confo the current yeas’ presentation. Such reclassifications ha
effect on the net income or lo:

September 30
Operating Data: 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Restaurant sale $ 19,274,000 $ 20,183,00($ 20,390,00($ 22,079,00($ 25,244,00(
Franchise fees and royalti 432,00C 420,000 473,000 536,000 638,000
Total Net Revenue 19,706,00( 20,603,00( 20,863,00( 22,615,00( 25,882,00(
Restaurant Operating Cos
Food and packaging cos 6,592,00( 7,241,00(C 7,181,00C 7,423,00C 8,002,00C
Payroll and other employee benefit cc 6,691,00(C 7,043,00(C 7,359,00( 7,663,00C 8,780,00C
Occupancy and other operating cc 3,939,00( 4,172,00C 4,331,00C 4,529,00C 4,881,00C
New store pr-opening cost - - - 15,000 38,000
Depreciation and amortizatic 795,00C 888,000 943,000 1,172,00C 1,283,00C
Total restaurant operating co 18,017,00( 19,344,00( 19,814,00( 20,802,00( 22,984,00(
Selling, General & Administrative cos 2,154,00C 2,038,00C 2,638,00C 2,814,00C 3,567,00C
Franchise cosl 60,000 70,000 124,000 161,000 312,000
Loss (Gain) on restaurant ass (51,000 (184,000 199,000 (28.000 (35,000
Loss from Operation ($474,000 ($665,000  ($1,912,00C  ($1,134,00C ($946,000
Other Income and (expenst
Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate
swap 20.000 27.000 3.000 (87.000 -
Other income (expens (15,000 22.000 - - =
Interest income (expense), | (199,000 (279,000 (598,000 (261,000 (13,000
Total other income (expens (194,000 (230,000 (1,185,00C (566,000 (13,000
Net Loss from continuing operatio ($668,000 ($895,000 ($2,507,00C  ($1,482,00C ($959,000
Loss from discontinued operatio - - (590.000 (218.000 -
Net Loss ($668,000 ($895,000  ($3,097,00C  ($1,700,00C ($959,000
Income (Expense) from n-controlling
interest (109.000 (118.000 165,000 54.000 (113.000
Income tax expens - - - - 4,000
Net Loss attributable to Good Tim
Restaurants In ($777,000 ($1,013,00C  ($2,932,00C  ($1,646.00C ($1.076,00C
Basic and Diluted Loss Per Sh: ($.29' ($.42' ($2.26 ($1.26 ($.84'
Balance Sheet Data
Working Capital (Deficit) $ 848,00C ($488,000  ($1,869,00C  ($1,200,00C  ($2,082,00C
Total asset 7,061,00C 6,999,00( 8,318,00( 10,254,00( 11,920,00(¢
Nor-controlling interest in partnershi 203,00C 215,000 274,000 428,000 584,000
Long-term debt 139,00C 2,067,00C 3,005,00C 2,478,00C 846,000
Stockholders' equit $ 3,260,00C $ 2,520,00($ 1,694,000$ 4,378,00($  5,993,00C
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Results of Operations

Net Revenues: Net revenues for fiscal 2012 decte$887,000-4.4%) to $19,706,000 from $20,603,000 for fiscal 2
Same store restaurant sales increased $534,000%¢}8uring fiscal 2012. Restaurants are includedame store sa
after they have been open a full fifteen months anty Good Times restaurants are included whilel dwande:
restaurants are excluded. Restaurant sales iect@d46,000 due to one restaurant purchased frioamehisee in Augu
2012. Restaurant sales decreased $95,000 due twarteaditional compangwned restaurant not included in same ¢
sales and decreased $269,000 due to one dual brandeanyewned restaurant sold in July 2012. Restaurant s
decreased $1,196,000 due to two company-ownedurests sold in fiscal 2011 and one compamyed restaurant sc
in fiscal 2012. Net revenues increased $12,008aaf 2012 due to an increase in franchise roya#ia fees.

The positive same store sales results for fiscaR2@flect the continuation of the positive momemtwe experienced
fiscal 2011 when same store sales increased 6.2fte Store sales were negatively impacted in theHf@uarter of fisc:
2012 by road construction and road closures atdfvour restaurants. The estimated loss of salleserkto these tw
restaurants in the fourth quarter was $100,00@tdfiag out the sales declines at the two affelriedtions, our same st
sales would have increased approximately 1.2% énfélurth quarter of fiscal 2012 which would haveeedhe sixt
consecutive quarter of same store sales increases.

Our outlook for fiscal 2013 is cautiously optimésbased on the last two years of positive saleslsiehowever our sal
trends are influenced by many factors and the nemomomic environment remains challenging for smatbstaurar
chains. Our average transaction increased inlf&@h2 compared to fiscal 2011 and we are contiptanmanage o
marketing communications to balance growth in aqustotraffic and the average customer expenditure.

Average restaurant sales for company-owned andeweloped restaurants (including double drive trastaurants ai
restaurants with dining rooms but excluding duahior restaurants and out of market restaurantdjsfal 2011 and 20:
were as follows:

Fiscal 2012 Fiscal 2011
Compan-operatec $807,00C $779,00C

Company operated restaurants’ sales range fronv afi&473,000 to a high of $1,487,000.

For factors which may affect future results of @ems, please refer to the section entitl&urtent Fiscal Yei
Initiatives” in Item 1 on pages 6 7 of this report and a related discussion of péahproduct and system chan
discussed in the section entitled “Concept andri&ss Strategy” in Item 1 on pages 4 - 6 of thisrep

Restaurant Operating Costs: Restaurant operating costs as a percent of restasades were 93.5% for fiscal 2(
compared to 95.8% in fiscal 2011.

The changes in restaurant-level costs are explaaéddilows:

Restaurar-level costs for the period ended September 30, 95.8%
Decrease in food and packaging cc (1.7%)
Decrease in payroll and other employee benefitst (.2%)
Decrease in occupancy and other operating (.2%)
Decrease in depreciation and amortization c (.2%)
Restaurar-level costs for the period ended September 30, 93.5%

Food and Packaging CostsFood and packaging costs for fiscal 2012 decre&8d®,000 from $7,241,000 (35.9%
restaurant sales) in fiscal 2011 to $6,592,002%4of restaurant sales).

In fiscal 2011 our weighted food and packaging £astreased approximately 5%. We implemented a Ir#%u pric
increase in February 2011, a 1.1% menu price iseréa late May 2011 and a 2.4% menu price incraasgeptembe
2011.

In fiscal 2012 our weighted food and packagingdstcreased slightly. The total menu price in@g#aken during fisc
2012 were 1.6%, all of which were taken in the fagt months of the fiscal year. We anticipate qmstssure on seve
core commodities, including beef, bacon and dainyffiscal 2013. However, we anticipate our food packaging costs
a percentage of sales will remain consistent witbaf 2012 in fiscal 2013 from a combination ofcgrincreases, prodi
sales mix changes and recipe modifications.
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Payroll and Other Employee Benefit Costs:For fiscal 2012, payroll and other employee benefists decreas
$352,000 from $7,043,000 (34.9% of restaurant aiefiscal 2011 to $6,691,000 (34.7% of restausaies).

The decrease in payroll and other employee bemgliénses as a percent of restaurant sales for 28ta is primarily th
result of higher restaurant sales. Because pagmdts are semiariable in nature they decrease as a percente
restaurant sales when there is an increase inurastasales. Additionally payroll and other empleyeenefits decreas
approximately $519,000 in fiscal 2012 due to twanpanyewned restaurants sold in February and May 2011
companyewned restaurant sold in December 2011 and one aoynpwned restaurant sold in July 2012. We arste
payroll and other employee benefit costs will daseeas a percentage of sales in fiscal 2013 diee toperating levera
on increasing sales.

Occupancy and Other Costsfor fiscal 2012, occupancy and other costs dealeb283,000 from $4,172,000 (20.7%
restaurant sales) in fiscal 2011 to $3,939,0004@00f restaurant sales). The $233,000 decreasecimpancy and oth
costs is primarily attributable to:

« Decrease in building rent of $159,000 primarily doi¢he four restaurants sold in fiscal 2012 asddi 2011.
« Decrease of $221,000 in all other restaurant operatosts due to the four restaurants sold in fi2ed2 an
fiscal 2011.

The decreases above were offset by the followirsg ioereases:

« Increases in various other restaurant operatings aifs$123,000 at existing restaurants compriséugily of
repairs and maintenance utility costs and bank fees

« An adjustment of $38,000 to our liability for thecaetion of deferred rent in fiscal 2012 due to taaic
restaurants. This compares to an adjustment 0D862n fiscal 2011 due to sold restaurants.

Occupancy costs may increase as a percent of asleew compangwned restaurants are developed due to highe
associated with sale-leaseback operating leas@glbas increased property taxes on those location

Depreciation and Amortization Costs: For fiscal 2012, depreciation and amortization £astcreased $93,000 fr
$888,000 in fiscal 2011 to $795,000. Depreciatiosts primarily decreased due to the four restasisold in fiscal 201
and 2011 as well as due to declining depreciatiperese in our aging company-owned and joint-venteseaurants.

General and Administrative Costs:For fiscal 2012, general and administrative castseased $77,000 from $1,281,
(6.2% of total revenues) in fiscal 2011 to $1,388,06.9% of total revenues).

The $77,000 increase in general and administratpenses in fiscal 2012 is primarily attributatde t

« Increase in payroll and employee benefit costs6af,0 due to the reinstatement of certain manageteee
salaries that were reduced in fiscal 2009 and 2010.

« Increase in professional services of $10,000.

« Decrease of $19,000 in miscellaneous income.

« Netincreases in various other expenses of $16,000.

Advertising Costs: For fiscal 2012, advertising costs increased $39fo@m $757,000 (3.8% of restaurant sales) in f
2011 to $796,000 (4.1% of restaurant sales).

Contributions are made to the advertising matefiatel and regional advertising cooperative basec gercentage
sales and there was a slight increase in the pagegontribution for fiscal 2012 compared to fis2@l1.

We anticipate that fiscal 2013 advertising expemwgeremain consistent with fiscal 2012 and willrest primarily o
radio advertising, social media and on-site anditpoi-purchase merchandising totaling approximately 48%estaurar
sales.

Franchise Costs:For fiscal 2012 franchise costs decreased $104@®0 $70,000 (.3% of total revenues) in fiscal 26d
$60,000 (.3% of total revenues).

The decrease in franchise costs for fiscal 201#imarily attributable to a lower allocation of ¢tesncurred due to few
franchise restaurants in the system.

Gain on Restaurant Asset Sale§or fiscal 2012 the gain on restaurant asset sidescased to $51,000 compare
$184,000 in fiscal 2011. The gain on restaurasétassales in fiscal 2012 is comprised of a $24dferred gain on
previous sale lease-back transaction, an $89,0@0gahe sale of two company-owned restaurantsepby a $62,000
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loss to adjust the book value of a property in$twae, Colorado to its fair market value.

The $184,000 gain on restaurant asset sales ial 211 was primarily related to the $168,000 gainthe sale of tw
company-owned restaurants in February and May 2@#ittee sale of one adeveloped building related to a restau
closed in fiscal 2010.

Loss from Operations: The loss from operations was $474,000 in fiscal226@mpared to a loss from operation
$665,000 in fiscal 2011. The decrease in loss foperations for the fiscal year is due primarilynatters discussed in 1
"Restaurant Operating Costs", "General and Admatise Costs", “Franchise Costs” antoss (Gain) on Restaur:
Assets” sections above.

Net Loss: The net loss was $668,000 for fiscal 2012 comptrek895,000 in fiscal 2011. The change from fifl1 t
fiscal 2012 was primarilyattributable to the matters discussed in the "NeteRues", "Restaurant Operating Co
"Selling, General and Administrative Costs" andatighise Costs" sections of Item 6, as well as tig@ease in n
interest expense of $90,000 compared to the saioe ywar period; and 2) an increase in other experd $37,00
compared to the same prior year period.

Net interest expense decreased in fiscal 2012 cadpa the same prior year period primarily due teeduction in tk
principal balances outstanding on the notes payabii#ells Fargo Bank and PFGI II. Net interest exgeefor fiscal 201
includes noresash amortization of debt issuance costs of $26j@lfted to warrants issued in conjunction with
extension of the PFGI Il loan in January, 2010.

Net interest expense for fiscal 2011 includes-cash amortization of debt issuance costs of $4&@lafed to: 1) warrar
issued in conjunction with the extension of the PHGoan in January, 2010; and 2) beneficial casuen rights an
warrants related to the loan agreement with W @hgihd John T. MacDonald entered into in February02@Se
“Financing” below).

Income Attributable to Non-controlling Interests: For fiscal 2012 the income attributable to rammtrolling interest
was $109,000 compared to $118,000 in fiscal 20h&. [&ss from non-controlling interest representslimited partneg
share of income in the co-developed restaurants.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

Cash and Working Capital: As of September 30, 2012, we had a working capitaéss of $848,000. Because restal
sales are collected in cash and accounts payabledd and paper products are paid two to four wdater, restaura
companies often operate with working capital deficiWe anticipate that working capital deficits ma@y incurred in tr
future and possibly increase if and when new Gooak$ restaurants are opened. We believe that Wlavie sufficien
capital to meet our working capital, long term debligations and recurring capital expenditure seledfiscal 2013 ar
beyond. We will require additional capital souréesthe development of new restaurants. Additignalle may sell ¢
sublease select underperforming company operagtdurants if we believe the realizable asset vislgreater than tl
long term cash flow value or if the asset doedfihour longer term distribution and location oktaurants.

Financing:

Wells Fargo Note Payable : The balance of our loan from Wells Fargo BankA.N“Wells Fargo”)at September 30, 20
was $232,000. We subsequently used a portion ofptbeeeds received by the Company from the salSeuies (
Convertible Preferred Stock to Sll to pay in fliletoutstanding balance, along with the associatiedeist rate swap w
Wells Fargo.

PEGI Il LLC Promissory Note : In July 2008, we borrowed $2,500,000 from PFGLUC (“PFGI 1I"), an unrelated thii
party, and issued a promissory note in the prin@paount of $2,500,000 to PFGI II (the “PFGI Il & The PFGI |
Note has subsequently been amended on several@mtasuring 2011 and 2012, the interest rate emite was 8.65¢
In April 2012 PFGI Il agreed to extend the loarDiecember 31, 2013 on the existing note termssila leaseback
not been completed on the Firestone property. e lpalance at September 30, 2012 was $1,318,000la®ember 3(
2012 we entered into a sale ledsek transaction on the Firestone property withpneteeds of $1,380,000 and we
$765,000 to pay down the PFGI Il Note. The remarbalance of $545,000 is due on or before Janubrp@13 whic
we anticipate repaying from the proceeds of alsalgeback transaction.

31 Investment Transactions : On December 13, 2010, we closed on a privateept@nt of 1,400,000 shares of
Common Stock to Sl for an aggregate purchase wfc$2,100,000 (or $1.50 per share), pursuant éotéims of
Securities Purchase Agreement between the Compahysh dated October 29, 2010, as amended Deceb@ez01C
As a result of the completion of the investmeahsaction with SllI, SIl became the beneficial owofeapproximatel
51.4
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percent of the Comparg/outstanding Common Stock. The proceeds frontréimsaction were used to pay approxims
$288,000 of expenses related to the transactipayr$585,000 in short term loans, reduce accradilities by $200,00!
reduce accounts payable by approximately $150,860tee balance going to increase the Company’singapital.

On September 28, 2012, we closed on a second imgastransaction with SlI, in which the Companydsahd issued
Sll 355,451 shares of Series C Convertible PredeBtck for an aggregate purchase price of $1,900(0r $4.22 p¢
share) pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, with slaare of Series C Convertible Preferred Stoclkextible at th
option of the holder into two shares of our Comnstock, subject to certain ardilution adjustments. As a result of 1
transaction, SIk beneficial ownership interest in the Company éased to 60.9 percent. The proceeds from
transaction were used to pay approximately $40diGkpenses related to the transaction and to r$pag,000 to Wel
Fargo, with the balance of the proceeds goingdrmease the Company’s working capital.

Cash Flows:Net cash used in operating activities was $22,@fiscal 2012 compared to net cash used in opg
activities of $539,000 in fiscal 2011. The increds net cash used in operating activities fromtiooimg operations ft
fiscal 2012 was the result of a net loss of $668,60d noncash reconciling items totaling $846,000 (compi
principally of 1) depreciation and amortization®795,000; 2) amortization of debt issuance cos$26,000; 3) $69,0(
of stock option compensation expense; 4) a $51¢200 on asset sales; 5) a $116,000 increase im mheivables ar
other assets: and 7) net increases in operatiegsaasd liabilities totaling $77,000).

Net cash provided by investing activities in fis@fl12 was $594,000 compared to $954,000 in fisball2 The fisc:
2012 activity reflects payments for the purchaseroperty and equipment of $314,000, proceeds fimrsales of fixe
assets of $913,000 and $5,000 loans to franch&®ksthers, net of payments received on loans.

Net cash used in financing activities in fiscal 20tas $803,000 compared to net cash provided layéing activities ¢
$3,000 in fiscal 2011. The fiscal 2012 activityclides principal payments on notes payable and tenm debt ¢
$650,000, costs related to the preferred stock&a®32,000 and distributions to neontrolling interests in partnersh
of $121,000.

Contingencies and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangement&Ve remain contingently liable on various land lsasederlyin
restaurants that were previously sold to franclsisé¥e have never experienced any losses relathéde contingent lee
liabilities; however, if a franchisee defaults tve fpayments under the leases, we would be liabldnéolease payments
the assignor or sublessor of the lease. Currevéljrave not been notified nor are we aware of aagds in default unc
which we are contingently liable. However thera ba no assurance that there will not be in theréjtwhich could hay
a material adverse effect on our future operatasylts.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates: We follow accounting standards set by the Finank@ounting Standar
Board, commonly referred to as the “FASBhe FASB sets generally accepted accounting pleifGAAP) that w
follow to ensure we consistently report our finahaondition, results of operations, and cash flo@ger the years, tl
FASB and other designated GAARtting bodies, have issued standards in the fé6rRA8B Statements, Interpretatio
FASB Staff Positions, EITF consensuses, AICPA 8tatds of Position, etc.

The FASB recognized the complexity of its standsetting process and embarked on a revised prone2804 the
culminated in the release on July 1, 2009, of tASB Accounting Standards Codification, $8metimes referred to as
Cadification or ASC. To the Company, this meansead of following the Statements, Interpretatid@®tsff Positions, etc
we will follow the guidance in Topics as definedtire ASC. The Codification does not change howGbmpany accour
for its transactions or the nature of related disates made. However, when referring to guidarseeis by the FASB, tl
Company refers to topics in the ASC rather thaneBtants, etc. The above change was made effegtitikebFASB fo
periods ending on or after September 15, 2009. #ve hpdated references to GAAP in this Annual Rempoi~orm 10K
to reflect the guidance in the Codification.

Notes ReceivableWe evaluate the collectability of our note receleatfrom franchisees annually. The aggregate
receivable on the consolidated balance sheet a®bpr 30, 2012 were $20,000.

Discontinued Operations: The Company analyzes its operations on a regioasisbwhen evaluating closed restat
operations for consideration as to the classificathetween continuing operations and discontinysatations. Prior
2010 the Company evaluated operations at the restalevel. In its reevaluation the Company deteedithat as most
the Companys restaurants are within the Denver metropolitagiore and share common advertising, distribu
supervision, and to a certain extent even custgntkes Company believes it appropriate to perforsnaibalysis on
regional basis. During fiscal 2011 the Company edoswo restaurants, and in fiscal 2012, the Compzloged a
additional two restaurants. The operations rel&detiese restaurants are reflected as part ofreong operations as th
were within one continuing operating region.
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Non-controlling Interests: Non-controlling interests, previously called minorityteérests, are presented as a separatt
in the equity section of the consolidated balartvees Consolidated net income or loss attributédl@oncontrolling
interests are presented on the face of the comgetidstatement of operations. Additionally, changes parent
ownership interest in a subsidiary that do notlteéswdeconsolidation are equity transactions, tired deconsolidation of
subsidiary is recorded as a gain or loss baseHefair value on the deconsolidation date.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets: We review our londived assets for impairment, including land, prdpeanc
equipment whenever events or changes in circumssai@icate that the carrying amount of an asset ma be
recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be hetum®d is measured by a comparison of the cagithtipsts of the ass
to the future undiscounted net cash flows expettidze generated by the assets and the expectedl@ashare based «
recent historical cash flows at the restaurantlIéie lowest level that cash flows can be deteeai)n

An analysis was performed on a restaurant by remtawasis at September 30, 2012. Assumptions ims@deparini
expected cash flows were as follows:

« Sales projections are as follows: Fiscal 2013 salerojected to increase 6% with respect tolfidéa2 and fc
fiscal years 2014 to 2027 we have used annualaseseof 2% to 3%. The 6% increase in fiscal 20HBigsto th
addition of breakfast sales. We believe the 2% %0 icrease in the fiscal years beyond 2013 is aorebl
expectation of growth and that it would be unreabba to expect no growth in our sales. These ise®aclud
menu price increases in addition to any real growltktorically our weighted menu prices have insexh1.5% t
6%.

« Our variable and semviariable restaurant operating costs are projedédcrease proportionately with the si
increases as well as increasing an additional h&4ear consistent with inflation.

« Our other fixed restaurant operating costs areeptefl to increase 1.5% to 2% per year.

« Food and packaging costs are projected to deceggmeximately .5% as a percentage of sales inioalad ou
fiscal 2012 food and packaging costs as a resultasfu price increases and other menu initiatives.

« Salvage value has been estimated on a restaurargsbgurant basis considering each restawwgptticula
equipment package and building size.

Given the results of our impairment analysis att&msper 30, 2012 there are no restaurants whiclingvaired as the
projected undiscounted cash flows show recovetglufitheir asset values.

Our impairment analysis included a sensitivity sl with regard to the cash flow projections tkdatermine th
recoverability of each restauramtassets. The results indicate that even with a d&fne in our projected cash flows
would still not have any potential impairment issuélowever if we elect to sublease, close or oilser exit a restaure
location impairment could be required.

Each time we conduct an impairment analysis in filtere we will compare actual results to our prots an
assumptions, and to the extent our actual resoltsodl meet expectations, we will revise our assionptand this cou
result in impairment charges being recognized.

All of the judgments and assumptions made in piegahe cash flow projections are consistent witin other financiz
statement calculations and disclosures. The assomsptised in the cash flow projections are consistéith othe
forwarddooking information prepared by the company, sushttiose used for internal budgets, discussions thitid
parties, and/or reporting to management or thedbofdirectors.

Projecting the cash flows for the impairment analysvolves significant estimates with regard te tierformance of ea
restaurant, and it is reasonably possible thaeéstienates of cash flows may change in the near tesoiting in the need
write down operating assets to fair value. If theets are determined to be impaired, the amoumpzirment recognize
is the amount by which the carrying amount of theets exceeds their fair value. Fair value wouldiétermined usir
forecasted cash flows discounted using an estinatecdhge cost of capital and the impairment chevqdd be recognize
in income from operations.

Income Taxes:We account for income taxes under the liability moett whereby deferred tax asset and liability act
balances are determined based on differences hetivedinancial reporting and tax bases of asseddiabilities and at
measured using the enacted tax rates and lawswnthdie in effect when the differences are expededeverse. Tt
Company provides a valuation allowance, if necgssamreduce deferred tax assets to their estima@dzable value. Tt
deferred tax assets are reviewed periodically éaoverability, and valuation allowances are adjliste necessary. \
believe it is more likely than not that the recatdieferred tax assets will be realized.
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The Company is subject to taxation in various fliogsons. The Company continues to remain subjg&xamination k
U.S. federal authorities for the years 2009 throg@h2. The Company believes that its income tamdfipositions an
deductions will be sustained on audit and doesntitipate any adjustments that will result in demal adverse effect «
the Company's financial condition, results of ofierss, or cash flows. Therefore, no reserves faredain income te
positions have been recorded. The Company's peaistio recognize interest and/or penalties reladédcome tax matte
in income tax expense. The Company has accruedr$otérest and penalties as of September 30, 2012.

Variable Interest Entities: Once an entity is determined to be a Variable &geEntity (VIE), the party with ti
controlling financial interest, the primary benéiy, is required to consolidate it. We have twanthisees with not
payable to the Company and after analysis we hatermined that, while these franchisees are §/Iile are not tt
primary beneficiary of the entities, and therefirey are not required to be consolidated.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: Fair value is established under a framework forsugag fair value under GAA
and enhances disclosure about fair value measutemen

New Accounting Pronouncements There are no current pronouncements that affiecCompany.
Subsequent Events:

At September 30, 2012 we classified $1,380,000sasts held for sale in the accompanying consotidagdance she:
These costs are related to a site in Firestonepr@dd which has been fully developed. On Novemiier2812 w
completed a sale leaback transaction on the property. The net salselesck proceeds of $1,380,000 were us
reduce the PFGI Il term loan by $765,000 and toeiase our working capital.

On November 30, 2012 we purchased the real estaterlying an existing restaurant from our landlwd$760,000. |
connection with the real estate purchase we haterezhinto an additional sale leaseback agreenhamtis expected

close in January 2013 and we expect to recognizproeeeds of $870,000. We entered into an amentimehe PFGI

loan agreement whereby we will repay the remaithiag balance out of the sale leaseback proceedstfre closing o
this sale leaseback transaction.

On December 5, 2012 we entered into an agreemgnirthase a restaurant from a franchisee for & ¢dth1,250,00(
including the real estate and operating businesls an anticipated closing date of December 31, 202 will pay
$650,000 in cash and issue a short term note dd,$60. We have entered into a sale leasebackragredor the rei
estate that we expect will yield approximately $D,000 in net proceeds by March 31, 2013.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK.

Not applicable
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Good Times Restaurants, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Good Times Restaurants, Inc. anddiabss as ¢
September 30, 2012 and 2011, and the related ¢datea statements of operations, stockholdegsiity, and cash flov
for the years then ended. These financial statesmare the responsibility of the Compamymanagement. C
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighamo(Unitet
States). Those standards require that we planparfdrm the audit to obtain reasonable assuranoetakhether th
financial statements are free of material misstateém The Company is not required to have, nor weseengaged
perform, an audit of its internal control over fiéal reporting. Our audits included consideratdrinternal control ove
financial reporting as a basis for designing ayldcedures that are appropriate in the circumsgriwet not for th
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectisenef the Compang’ internal control over financial reporti
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An awd#o includes examining, on a test basis, evideupporting th
amounts and disclosures in the financial statemergtsessing the accounting principles used andfisagrt estimate
made by management, as well as evaluating thelbfieeancial statement presentation. We beliewa thur audits provic
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeeferred to above present fairly, in all mater@gspects, the financ
position of Good Times Restaurants, Inc. and sidnse$ as of September 30, 2012 and 2011, andethdts of the
operations and their cash flows for the years #heted, in conformity with U.S. generally acceptedoainting principles.

Hein & Associates LLP
Denver, Colorado

December 28, 2012
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Good Times Restaurants Inc. and Subsidiary

Consolidated Balance Sheets

September 30
2012 2011
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivale $ 616,00C $ 847,000
Preferred stock sale receival $ 1,500,00C -
Assets held for sal 1,380,00( -
Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accowiits0 145.00C 106.00C
Prepaid expenses and ot 53,000 47,000
Inventories 159,00C 191,00C
Notes receivabl 5,000 5,000
Total current asse 3,858,000 1,196,00C
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT1
Land and building 4,887,00( 6,969,00C
Leasehold improvemen 3,241,00C 3,617,00C
Fixtures and equipme 7,369,00(C 7,669,00C
15,497,00( 18,255,00(
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (12,415,00C (12,533,00¢
3,082,00( 5,722,00C
OTHER ASSETS
Notes receivable, net of current port 15,000 10,000
Deposits and other ass 106,00C 71,000
121,00C 81,000
TOTAL ASSETS $ 7,061,00C $ 6,999.00¢C
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current maturities of lor-term debt and capital lease obligations, n¢ $ 1,586,00C $ 195,000
discount of $7,000 and $26,000, respecti
Accounts payabl 493,00C 496,00C
Deferred incom 75,000 101,00C
Other accrued liabilitie 856,00C 892,00C
Total current liabilities 3,010,00C 1,684,00(
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Debt and capital lease obligations, net of curpamtion and net of discou
of $0 and $7,000, respective 139.00C 2.067.00C
Deferred and other liabilitie 652,000 728,00C
Total lonc-term liabilities 791,00C 2,795,00(C
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES(Notes 5 and 7
STOCKHOLDERY EQUITY:
Good Times Restaurants Inc stockhol’ equity:
Preferred stock, $.001 par vall
5,000,000 shares authorized, 355,451 and O is
and outstanding as of September 30, 2012 and 284gdectively (liquidatio
preference $1,500,00 1.000 -
Common stock, $.001 par value; 50,000,000 sk
authorized, 2,726,214 shares issued and outsta
as of September 30, 2012 and 2! 3.000 3.000
Capital contributed in excess of par va 21,510,00(C 19,982,00(
Accumulated defici (18,457,00C (17,680,00C
Total Good Times Restaurants Inc stockholders'tg 3,057,00C 2,305,00C
Non-controlling interest in partnershi 203.00C 215.00C
Total stockholder equity 3,260,00¢ 2,520,00¢
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 7.061,00C $ 6,999,00C
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Good Times Restaurants Inc. and Subsidiary

Consolidated Statements of Operation

Restaurant sale

Area development and franchise fi
Franchise royaltie

Total net revenue

RESTAURANT OPERATING COSTS.

Food and packaging cos

Payroll and other employee benefit cc
Restaurant occupancy co

Other restaurant operating co
Depreciation and amortizatic

Total restaurant operating co

General and administrative co
Advertising cost:

Franchise cosi

Gain on restaurant asset s

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES).

Interest incomt

Interest expens

Other income (expens

Unrealized income on interest rate sv
Total other expenses, r

NET LOSS

Income attributable to n-controlling interest:

NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO GOOD TIMES RESTAURANTS, I

Net loss attributable to Good Times Restaurants

Basic and Dilute(

FOR THE YEARS ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30,

2012

$ 19.274.00C
18.000

414,000
19.706.00(

6,592,00C
6.691.00C
2.999.00C
940.000
795,000
18.017.00C

1.358.00C
796.000
60,000
(51,000
(474.000

4,000
(203.000
(15,000
20.000
(194.000
($668.000
(109,000
($777.000

($.29

2,726,214

2011

20.183.00(
1.000
419,00C
20.603.00(

7,241,00C
7.043.00C
3.220.00C
952.00C
888.,00C
19.344,00(

1.281.00C
757.00C
70,000
(184,000
(665.000

1,000
(280.000
22,000
27.000
(230.000
($895.000
(118,000
($1.013.00C

($.42

2.440.86(



Good Times Restaurants Inc. and Subsidiary
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
For the period from October 1, 2010 through Septemér 30, 2012

Preferred Stock Common Stock
Capital Non-
Contributed in  controlling

Issued Par Issued Par  Excess of Par interestin  Accumulated

Shares Value Shares (1) Value (1) Value (1) Partnerships Deficit Total
sumees, OCtober 1, 201 - 3 0 1,299,521 $1.,00C $ 18,156,000 $ 274,000 $ (16.737.00C$ 1,694,00C
Stock option compensation c« 61,00( 61,000
Stock issuet 1.,426.69! 2.00( 1.765.00 1,767.00C
Non-controlling interest in Partnershi (59,000 70.000 11,000
Net Loss and comprehensive I« (1.013.000 (1.013.000
sunces, September 30, 201 - % 0 2,726,21. $3,00C $ 19,982,000 $ 215,000 $ (17.680.00C$ 2,520,00C
Stock issuet 355,45: = 1.460.00! 1.460.00C
Stock option compensation cc 69.,00( 69,000
Nonr-controlling interest in Partnershi (12,000 (12,000
Net Loss and comprehensive I (777,000 (777,000
suneces, September 30, 20! 355.45. $ 1.00( 2,726,21. $3.,00C $21,510.00 $ 203,000 $ (18.457.00C$ 3.260.00C

(1) Adjusted to effect a 1 for 3 reverse stock spliDetember 31, 2010
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Good Times Restaurants Inc. and Subsidiary

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES.

Net Loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Amortization of debt issuance co:
Accretion of deferred rer
Write off of note receivabl
Gain on disposal of property, restaurants and eogii
Stock option compensation cc
Unrealized income on interest rate swap agree

Changes in operating assets and liabilit
(Increase) decrease |
Other receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and ot
Deposits and other ass:
(Decrease) increase i
Accounts payabl
Accrued and other liabilitie
Net cash used in operating activit

Payments for the purchase of property and equip

Proceeds from the sale of ass

Loans made to franchisees and to otl

Payments received on loans to franchisees andhé&os
Net cash provided by investing activiti

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Principal payments on notes payable, capital leaseslon-term deb:
Proceeds (costs) from stock s
Distributions to minority interest partn

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

caswano caseauvanents, DEQINNING Of yea
caswano casequvaients, €NA OF yea

Cash paid for intere:
Purchase of equipment with debt and capital le
Receivable from sale of preferred st
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED

September 30

2012 2011
(668.000 $ (895.000
795.00C 888.00C
26,000 48,000
(38.000 (62.000
- 4,000
(51,000 (184,000
69,000 61,000
(20,000 (27,000
(47,000 51,000
32,000 10,000
(6,000 (9.000
(63,000 (43,000
(11,000 (220,000
(40.000 (161.000
(22,000 (539,000
(314,000 (189,000
913.00C 1.143.00C
(16,000 -
11,000 -
594,00C 954,00C
(650,000 (1,617,00C
(32,000 1,727,00C
(121,000 (107,000
(803,000 3.000
(231,000 418,00C
847,00C 429,00C
616.00C $ 847.00C
171,00C $ 240,00C
87.000 $ 124.00C
1,500.00C -



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accountitalicies (policies):

Organization— Good Times Restaurants Inc. (Good Times or the @Gompis a Nevada corporation. The Comg
operates through its wholly owned subsidiary GoodeE Drive Thru Inc. (Drive Thru).

Drive Thru commenced operations in 1986 and, é8eptember 30, 2012, operates twenty four compamed and joir
venture drive-thru fast food hamburger restauraiitee Company restaurants are located in Colorado. In addifiyive
Thru has seventeen franchises, fourteen operati@plorado, two in Wyoming and one in North Dakatad is offerin
franchises for development of additional Drive Theataurants.

We follow accounting standards set by the Finand@ounting Standards Board, commonly referredstehe “FASB”.
The FASB sets generally accepted accounting pleeifGAAP) that we follow to ensure we consisteryport ou
financial condition, results of operations and ctisivs.

Principles of Consolidatior The consolidated financial statements include tw@ants of Good Times, its subsidiary
one limited partnership, in which the Company ese® control as general partner. The Company owreparoximat
51% interest in the limited partnership, is theesgpéneral partner and receives a management faet@iny distributior
to the limited partner. Because the Company ownapproximate 51% interest in the partnership amdatses comple
management control over all decisions for the gastmp, except for certain veto rights, the finahstatements of tl
partnership are consolidated into the Compsifijancial statements. The equity interest ofuheelated limited partner
shown on the accompanying consolidated balance sh#ee stockholders’ equity section as a wontrolling interest ar
is adjusted each period to reflect the limited pen's share of the net income or loss as well as asly dtributions to tt
limited partner for the period. The limited partseshare of the net income or loss in the partiprghshown as non-
controlling interest income or expense in the aquamying consolidated statement of operations. Afericompan:
accounts and transactions are eliminated.

Basis of Presentatior The Company analyzes its operations on a regioasisbwhen evaluating closed restat
operations for consideration as to the classificatietween continuing operations and discontinysegtasions. As most
the Companys restaurants are within the Denver metropolitagiore and share common advertising, distribu
supervision, and to a certain extent even custgniees Company believes it appropriate to perforsnaihalysis on
regional basis. During 2011 the Company closed resbaurants and in 2012, the Company has closedi@itional twe
restaurants. The operations related to theseurestis are reflected as part of continuing openatias they were with
one continuing operating region. The Company hatdmal gains in connection with the sales of eacthege restaurar
and their combined operating losses were approgrin&275,000 in 2011 and $158,000 in 2012.

Accounting Estimates The preparation of consolidated financial statesé@mtconformity with U.S. Generally Accep
Accounting Principles requires management to makienates and assumptions that affect the amouptstesl in thes
consolidated financial statements and the acconipgmptes. Actual results could differ from th@stimates.

Reclassification Certain prior year balances have been reclagdifiecconform to the current yearpresentation. Su
reclassifications had no effect on the net incomless.

During the years ended September 30, 2012 and d@lCompany incurred expenses of $15,000 and inegr@2,00C
respectively, and has a remaining lease liabilit$&2,000 as of September 30, 2012, related tstaweant that was clos
prior to 2011 and was previously classified as alisitued operations. Due to the insignificance k& amounts, tt
Company has reclassified such amounts as otherns&pi operations and as other liabilities on t&dense
consolidated balance sheet.

Cash and Cash Equivalent§'he Company considers all highly liquid debt instants purchased with an initial matu
of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable Accounts receivable include uncollateralized reabigs from our franchisees and our advert
fund, due in the normal course of business, gelgerafuiring payment within thirty days of the irge date. On
periodic basis the Company monitors all accountsdi@inquency and provides for estimated lossesirafollectible
accounts. Currently and historically there havenb@®allowances for unrecoverable accounts reckivab

Inventories- Inventories are stated at the lower of cost akketadetermined by the first-in firetat method, and consist
restaurant food items and related packaging supplie
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Property and EquipmenrtProperty and equipment are stated at cost andepreciated using the straigtite method ove
the estimated useful lives of the related assetserglly three to eight years. Property and equippraader capital leas
are stated at the present value of minimum leage@ats and are amortized using the straligiet-method over the shor
of the lease term or the estimated useful livethefassets. Leasehold improvements are amortized the straightine
method over the shorter of the term of the leagb@estimated useful life of the asset.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expensecased, and expenditures for major improvementscaggtalizec
When assets are retired, or otherwise disposati@froperty accounts are relieved of costs andraalated depreciatit
with any resulting gain or loss credited or charggeshcome.

At September 30, 2012 we classified $1,380,000sasts held for sale in the accompanying consotidagdance she:
These costs are related to a site in Firestongr@dd which has been fully developed. Subsequegefdember 30, 20
we completed a sale leaBaek transaction on the property. The $1,380,0pfesents the fair market value of the asse
charge of $61,000 is included in the accompanyimgsolidated statement of operations to adjust fiseta to their fg
market value. The net proceeds of $1,380,000 wsee to pay down the PFGI Il, LLC note payable b§5@00 and 1
purchase the real estate underlying an existingpeoiyrowned restaurant in Wheat Ridge, Colorado.

Impairment of Lonelived Assets— We review our longived assets including land, property and equipmiem
impairment whenever events or changes in circurnstarnndicate that the carrying amount of an assef mot b
recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be hetum®d is measured by a comparison of the cagithtipsts of the ass
to the future undiscounted net cash flows expettidze generated by the assets and the expectedl@ashare based «
recent historical cash flows at the restaurantlleve

An analysis was performed for impairment at Sepm80, 2012 and given the results of our analyseset were n
restaurants which are impaired.

Sales of Restaurants and Restaurant Equity IntereSales of restaurants or noortrolling equity interests in restaure
developed by the Company are recorded under eitigefull accrual method or the installment methddaccounting
Under the full accrual method, a gain is not rexdped until the collectability of the sales pricereasonably assured
the earnings process is virtually complete withiouther contingencies. When a sale does not nieetequirements f
income recognition, the related gain is deferretl those requirements are met. Under the insttinrmethod, the gain
incrementally recognized as principal paymentshanrelated notes receivable are collected. [fifial payment is les
than specified percentages, use of the instalimetiiod is followed.

The Company accounts for the sale of restauranélie risks and other incidents of ownership Hzeen transferred
the buyer. Specifically, a) no continuing involvemh by the Company exists in restaurants thataldk B) sales contrac
and related income recognition are not dependartherfuture successful operations of the sold veatds, and c) tt
Company is not involved as a guarantor on the @sefs’ debts.

Deferred Liabilities— Rent expense is reflected on a stralgig-basis over the term of the lease for all |lsas@ntainini
stepups in base rent. An obligation representing fufpayments (which totaled $283,000 as of Septer®®eR012) i
reflected in the accompanying consolidated balahezt as a deferred liability. Also included ie $652,000 deferr
and other liabilities balance is a $282,000 detegain on the sale of the building and improvemerfitene Company-
owned restaurant in a sale leaseback transacthw buiilding and improvements were subsequentlyetéasck from tk
third party purchaser. The gain will be recognizetuture periods in proportion to the rents paidtioe twenty year lease.

Opening Costs Restaurant opening costs are expensed as incurred

Advertising— The Company incurs advertising expenses in cororedtith the marketing of its restaurant operati
Advertising costs are expensed when the relateertising begins.

Franchise and Area Development Fedsadividual franchise fee revenue is deferred whereived and is recognized
income when the Company has substantially perforaleaf its obligations under the franchise agreemand th
franchisee has commenced operations. The Companyimitments and obligations pursuant to the fissecagreemer
consist of a) development assistance; including sélection, building specifications and equipmamtchasing and
operating assistance; including training of persbramd preparation and distribution of manuals eperating material
All of these obligations are effectively complefgon the opening of the restaurant at which tineeftanchise fee and t
portion of any development fee allocable to thataerant is recognized. There are no addition&tmah commitments «
obligations.

F-8



The Company has not recognized any franchise feas Have not been collected. The Company segiegaitéal
franchise fees from other franchise revenue insthtement of operations. Revenues and costsdaetatsompanyewnec
restaurants are segregated from revenues andrelzed to franchised restaurants in the stateofesperations.

Continuing royalties from franchisees, which amgeacentage of the gross sales of franchised opestare recognized
income when earned. Franchise development expemwsgsh consist primarily of legal costs and ressati openin
expenses associated with developing and openingHise restaurants, are expensed against thed-dlatechise fe
income.

Income Taxes- We account for income taxes under the liability moet whereby deferred tax asset and liability act
balances are determined based on differences betivedinancial reporting and tax bases of assaddiabilities and ai
measured using the enacted tax rates and lawswthdie in effect when the differences are expededeverse. Tt
Company provides a valuation allowance, if necgssamreduce deferred tax assets to their estima@izable value. Tt
deferred tax assets are reviewed periodically éaoverability, and valuation allowances are adjliste necessary. \
believe it is more likely than not that the recatdieferred tax assets will be realized.

The Company is subject to taxation in various fliogsons. The Company continues to remain subjgebamination k
U.S. federal authorities for the years 2009 throg@h2. The Company believes that its income tamgfipositions an
deductions will be sustained on audit and doesintitipate any adjustments that will result in aemal adverse effect «
the Company's financial condition, results of ofierss, or cash flows. Therefore, no reserves farewain income te
positions have been recorded. The Company's pedstio recognize interest and/or penalties reladédcome tax matte
in income tax expense. No accrual for interestamhlties was considered necessary as of Sept@db2012.

Net Income (Loss) Per Common Sh- Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividirggincome (loss) available
common stockholders by the weighted average numib@mmon shares outstanding for the period. BdUEPS reflec
the potential dilution that could occur if secug#tior other contracts to issue common stock wesecesed or convert
into common stock. Options for 175,289 and 166 §f2&es of common stock, and warrants for 70,871184¢704 shar:
of common stock, were not included in computingitgitl EPS for 2012 and 2011, respectively, becdesedffects wer
anti-dilutive.

Financial Instruments and Concentrations of Cr&igk — Credit risk represents the accounting loss that lavdng
recognized at the reporting date if counterpafagded completely to perform as contracted. Cotreions of credit ris
(whether on or off balance sheet) that arise frorarfcial instruments exist for groups of custonwrsounterparties wh
they have similar economic characteristics thatld/mause their ability to meet contractual obligasi to be similarl
effected by changes in economic or other conditiofmancial instruments with off-balanseeet risk to the Compa
include lease liabilities whereby the Company istcmently liable as a guarantor of certain leabas were assigned
third parties in connection with various salesesftaurants to franchisees (see Note 5).

Financial instruments potentially subjecting thex®any to concentrations of credit risk consist @pally of receivable
At September 30, 2012 notes receivable totaled0$®0and are due from two entities. The Comparsyeh&1,500,0(
current receivable related to the preferred stati that occurred on September 28, 2012. The 13,000 was receiv
on October 1, 2012. Additionally, the Company h#epcurrent receivables totaling $145,000, whiatiudes $64,000
franchise receivables and $63,000 for a receivlibla the advertising cooperative fund, which afedak in the norm:
course of business.

The Company purchases 100% of its restaurant foodpaper from one vendor. The Company believesfficient
number of other suppliers exist from which food gweber could be purchased to prevent any tengy, advers
consequences.

The Company operates in one industry segment,uestts. A geographic concentration exists becthuseCompany
customers are generally located in the State ofr@db.

Comprehensive Income (Logs— Comprehensive income includes net income or losanges in certain assets
liabilities that are reported directly in equitycbuas adjustments resulting from unrealized gamksses on held-to-
maturity investments and certain hedging transastio

In May 2007, the Company entered into an interdstsaap agreement, designated as a cash flow hetigdy hedges tt
Company’s exposure to interest rate fluctuationghenCompanys floating rate $1,100,000 term loan. In fiscal 2@0e
Company recorded the fair value of these contiadise balance sheet, with the offset to other aaimgnsive loss. In
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fiscal 2009 through fiscal 2012 the fair value bagn recognized in current earnings, as the cashtfédge has been de-
designated. The contract requires monthly settl¢ésnefthe difference between the amounts to bavedeand paid und
the agreement, the amount of which is recognizeduiment earnings as interest expense. See Note additione
information.

StockBased CompensatienStock-based compensation is measured at the damtbasedn the calculated fair value
the award, and is recognized as an expense oveedésite employee service period (generally tbgtimg period of tk
grant). See Note 9 for additional information.

Variable Interest Entities Once an entity is determined to be a variable @steentity (VIE), the party with the controlli
financial interest, the primary beneficiary, is uggd to consolidate it. The Company has two frésees with note
payable to the Company. This franchisees are §/IEOwever, the franchisees are the primary baagfiof the entitie:
not the Company. Therefore they are not requirdzbtconsolidated.

Fair Value of Financial Instrumentd-air value, is defined under a framework for meiagufair value under genera
accepted accounting principles and enhances disel®sabout fair value measurements. See Note &dditiona
information. Fair value is defined as the pricet tvauld be received to sell an asset or paid tosfex a liability in a
orderly transaction between market participanthatmeasurement date. Valuation techniques usettésure fair valt
maximize the use of observable inputs and minirtizeuse of unobservable inputs.

The following three levels of inputs may be usedn®asure fair value and requires that the assdiahilities carried ¢

fair value are disclosed by the input level undbicl they were valuet

Level 1: Quoted market prices in active markets for idehtisgets and liabilitie:

Level 2: Observable inputs other than defined in Level thsas quoted prices for similar assets or liabgitiquote
prices in markets that are not active; or otheuigghat are observable or can be corroboratedobgroabl
market data for substantially the full term of tiesets or liabilities

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated Isglable market dat

Nonr-controlling Interests

Non-controlling interests are presented as a sepatete in the equity section of the consolidated bzdasheet. Tt
amount of consolidated net income or loss attrileté#o the norcontrolling interests are clearly presented onfdoe o
the consolidated income statement.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement$here are no current pronouncements that atiec€ompany.

2. Liquidity :

As of September 30, 2012, we had $616,000 in cashcash equivalents on hand. We currently planse the cas
balance and the $1,500,000 proceeds of the prdfstoek sale funded on October 1, 2012, along aiith cash generat
from operations, for our working capital needsistél 2013. We believe that we will have sufficieapital to meet ol
working capital, long term debt obligations andureing capital expenditure needs in fiscal 20131dikionally, we ma
sell or sublease select underperforming companyatge: restaurants if we believe the realizabletasgee is greater th
the long term cash flow value or if the asset dugdit our longer term distribution and locatiohrestaurants.

As of September 30, 2012, we had a working capiaéss of $847,000. Because restaurant sales l&et@d in cash ar
accounts payable for food and paper products dcetp@ to four weeks later, restaurant companig¢srobperate wi
working capital deficits. We anticipate that worginapital deficits will be incurred in the futuradamay increase as n
Good Times restaurants are opened.
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3. Debt and Capital Leases

Note payable with PFGI II, LLC with monthly paymerdf principal and interest (8.65%, with a 25y
amortization) and a balloon payment of all unparth@pal due on January 31, 2013. The loan is
collateralized by one Real Property Deed of Trubtee Leasehold Deeds of Trust and Security
Agreements and Assignment of Rents and Fixturadsliand two Security Agreements and Assignment

of Rents and Fixture Filings related to those fieeporate restaurants. The promissory note catesita

line of credit which may be repaid but not re-adve at any time. This note was reduced by $765,000

on November 30, 201. $ 1.319.00C
Note payable with Wells Fargo Bank, NA with schedlpayments of principal and interest (prime

less .5%) due monthly, and the final payment dugamuary 2014. The loan is collateralized by Sgcur
Agreements related to the furniture, fixtures agdiement of the eight corporate restaurants. Thie n

was repaid in full on October 2, 20! 232.00C

Capital signage leases with Yesco, LLC with paymetprincipal and interest (8%) due montt 129.,00C

Notes payable with Ally Financial with paymentspfncipal and interest (1.9% to 3.9%) due mont

The loans are secured by vehic 52.000

Unamortized note discount related to warrants @sneconnection with the above note payable \

PFGI II, LLC. (7.000
1,725,00(

Less current portio (1,586,00C

Long term portior $ 139,00C

In conjunction with the Wells Fargo Bank term lodne Company entered into a variable to fixed egerate swe
agreement with Wells Fargo Bank effective May 9, 2Z0fith a notional amount of $1,100,000, a pay odté.77% and
receive rate based on the bank prime rate less..30% swap agreement has an eiggdr term and has the effeci
normalizing the effective interest rate at 7.77%. 0% September 30, 2012, the fair value of theremhtwas a liability ¢
$7,000. The liability has been recorded in otheraed liabilities.

As of September 30, 2012, principal payments or betome due as follows:
Years Endin¢

September 3(

2013 $ 1,586,00!
2014 45,00(
2015 46,00(
2016 37,00(
2017 11,00¢(

$ 1,725.00

4. Other Accrued Liabilities

Other accrued liabilities consist of the followiagSeptember 30, 2012:
Wages and other employee bene $ 270,00(

Taxes, other than income t 436,00(
Other 150,00(
Total $ 856,00(
5. Commitments and Contingencies

The Companys office space, and the land and buildings relétethe Drive Thru restaurant facilities are classifa
operating leases and expire over the next 13 y8arse leases contain escalation clauses ovewtgdf the leases. M
of the leases contain one to three fjgar renewal options at the end of the initial te@artain leases include provisit
for additional contingent rent payments if salelrges exceed specified levels. The Company paichakerial contingel
rentals during fiscal 2012 and 2011.
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Following is a summary of operating lease actisitie

Year Endec
September 30,
2012
Minimum rentals $ 1,993,00(
Less sublease rent: (405,000
Net rent paic $ 1,588,00C

As of September 30, 2012, future minimum rental waments required under the Companyperating leases that h
initial or remaining noncancellable lease termexoess of one year are as follows:

Years Ending September

2013 $ 1,903,00(

2014 1,699,00C

2015 1,301,00C

2016 1,131,00C

2017 1,132,00C
Thereaftel 4,325,00C
11,491,00(

Less sublease rent: (2,877,00C
$ 8.614,00(

The Company is contingently liable on the subleas®gals disclosed above. The subleased and assigases expil
between 2015 and 2024. In the past the Compangéwas been required to pay any significant amauebinnection wit
its guarantees and currently we have not beenieabtifor are we aware of any leases in default eyfrdmchisees, howe\
there can be no assurance that there will not ble dafaults in the future which could have a mateaffect on our futui
operating results.

6. Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) are comprisetheffollowing at September 30:

2012 2011

Current Long Term Current Long Term
Deferred assets (liabilities
Tax effect of net operating loss ce-
forward (includes $13,000 of charitable
carry-forward) $ = $ 266600 $- $ 3.128.00C
Partnership basis differen = 148.000 - 147,000
Deferred revenu = 117,000 - 126.00C
Property and equipment basis differen = 387,000 — 339,000
Other accrued liability differenc 68,000 57,000 63,000 43,000
Net deferred tax asse 68.000 3.375.00C 63.000 3.783.00C
Less valuation allowance (68,000 (3,375,000 (63,000 (3,783,000
Net deferred tax asse $ = $ ) = =
* The valuation allowance decreased by $403,000 dthie year ended September 30, 2012.

The Company has net operating loss céoryvards available for future periods, as discusselbw, of approximate
$777,000 for 2012 and $3,200,000 from 2011 andr fopincome tax purposes which expire from 201®aigh 203z
Based on the change in control, which occurrezDihl, the utilization of the loss caryrwards incurred for periods pr
to 2012 is limited to approximately $160,000 pearye
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Total income tax expense for the years ended 28822811 differed from the amounts computed by dpglyhe U.S
Federal statutory tax rates to pre-tax income kWe:

2012 2011

Total expense (benefit) computed by applying th®. S$tatutory rate (35% $ (272.000 $ (355.000
State income tax, net of federal tax ber (23,000 (31.000
Effect of change in valuation allowan (403.000 49.000
Permanent difference 13,000 22,000
Expiration of net operating loss ce-forward 680.00C 312,000
Other 5,000 3.000
Provision for income taxe $ -3 =
7. Related Parties

The Erie County Investment Company (owner of 99% leé Bailey Company) is a holder of our common lstaxed ha
certain contractual rights to elect members ofGoenpanys Board of Directors under the Series B Convertitrieferre
Stock Agreements entered into in February, 2005raadified under the Series C Convertible PrefeBtatk agreeme
entered into in June 2012.

The Company leases office space from The Bailey jizmmy under a lease agreement which expires in Deeef012, w
anticipate extending the lease beyond 2012. PRaidtto them in fiscal 2012 and 2011 for office apavas $58,000 a
$55,000, respectively.

The Bailey Company was the owner of one franchisedd Times Drive Thru restaurant which is located dveland
Colorado. The Company purchased this restauraAugust 2012 for a purchase price of approxima$ll90,000. Th
Bailey Company had entered into a franchise andagement agreement with us. Franchise royaltiesnaamtbgemel
fees paid under that agreement totaled approxign&tet,000 and $53,000 for the fiscal years endiept&nber 30, 20:
and 2011, respectively. Amounts due from The Balleynpany related to the agreement at Septembe&03@, and 201
were $0 and $16,000, respectively.

In April 2012 the Company entered into a finanaédVisory services agreement with Heathcote Caplt&l pursuant t
which they will provide the Company with exclusifiancial advisory services in connection with agble strateg
transaction. Gary J. Heller, a member of the ComjgBoard of Directors, is the principal of Heathc@apital LLC
Accordingly, the agreement constitutes a relatatiydransaction and was reviewed and approvetéytdit Committe
of the Companys Board of Directors. Total amounts paid to Heatiapital LLC in fiscal 2012 were $48,600, whick
deferred and included in other assets.

8. Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

The following table summarizes financial assets batailities that are measured at fair value oreeurring basis as
September 30, 2012:

Level 2:
Interest Rate Swap liability:

Balance at September 30, 2( $ 57,00(
Balance at September 30, 2( $ 7,00¢
Net change $ 50,00(

The unrealized gains for the years ending SepteriBer2012 and September 30, 2011 of $20,000 ando®@
respectively, are reported in the ConsolidatedeBtanht of Operations. In conjunction with the ameedirto the Well
Fargo Bank note in December 2011 we paid downritezest rate swap liability by $30,000. There wersdransfers in «
out of Level 3 for the year ending September 30,220
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9. StockholdersEquity :

Preferred Stock The Company has the authority to issue 5,000,0@€estof preferred stock. The Board of Directors
the authority to issue such preferred shares irse@nd determine the rights and preferences otllaees as may
determined by the Board of Directors.

In June 2012 the Company entered into a Secuftieshase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreemaenitt) Small Islan
Investments Limited (“SlI”),pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell 443 8&t3ares of a new series of
Company’s preferred stock to be designated as éSe&€i Convertible Preferred Stocldt, a purchase price of $4.22
share, or an aggregate purchase price of $2,000,BQ6suant to the Purchase Agreement, the clafilige Investmel
Transaction was subject to the receipt of stockdrofpproval. Stockholder approval was obtaineti@Annual Meetin
of Stockholders held September 14, 2012.

On September 28, 2012, the Company completed teesd issuance of 355,451 shares of the Seriggférred Stock 1
Sll, for an aggregate purchase price of $1,500,00@ Company has entered into a Supplemental Agreemith S
which provides that Sl will purchase the remain8itares of Series C Preferred Stock under the Bsechgreement in
second closing to occur on or before March 31, 2@tl3uch time as the CompasyBoard of Directors reasona
determines, with 45 days’ prior notice to SlI, thie@ Company requires such funds to maintain thrermim stockholders’
equity required under NASDAQ Listing Rules on thaSDAQ Capital Market.

Following are the rights, preferences, and privakegf the Shares:

« Following the closing of the Investment Transactidividends shall accrue on shares of Series C €tibie
Preferred Stock at the rate of 8.0% per annum efotfiginal issue price of $4.22 per share, withhsdiwidend:
payable quarterly. The dividends on shares ofeSeti Convertible Preferred Stock shall be payabte pnd ir
preference to any dividends on the Comparyommon Stock. In the event the Series C CotlerRreferre
Stock has not been converted to Common Stock witlinmonths following the closing of the Investn
Transaction, thereafter (i) the rate of the dividlershall increase to 15.0% per annum from the ttetieis 1t
months after the closing of the Investment Trangaaintil converted or redeemed by the Company, (@nthe
Company may upon the approval of a majority ofdrenterested members of the Board redeem alloon fime
to time a portion of the Series C Convertible Pmrefé Stock by payment of its liquidation preference

« In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liqattn, dissolution, or winding up of the Company, a
transaction which is deemed to be a liquidatiorspant to the Certificate of Designations, holddrSeries (
Convertible Preferred Stock shall be entitled toeree a preference payment equal to the origirsaleirice ¢
$4.22 per share, plus any accrued but unpaid didisiebefore any assets of the Company are distdbis
holders of the Company’s Common Stock.

« Shares of Series C Convertible Preferred StocK sbté together with the Common Stock on an amifverte
basis. In addition, shares of Series C Converfislferred Stock shall have the right to vote, asparate clas
on certain major corporate transactions for whioh approval of the holders of a majority of thestardin
shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stockgsired.

« Shares of Series C Convertible Preferred StocK beatonvertible into shares of Common Stock at tmg a
the option of the holder, at a conversion ratiolldb@ two shares of Common Stock for each sharBesfes (
Convertible Preferred Stock converted (subject djusiment in the event of any stock split, comborg
reorganization, or reclassification of the Commeoc8.)

The Company may require the conversion of all aniding shares of Series C Convertible PreferredkStdo shares «
Common Stock at the above conversion ratio at amg @after 36 months following the closing of thevéstmer
Transaction provided that the public trading precel the trading volume of the Common Stock medaiuecriteria. |
addition, the Series C Convertible Preferred Steitddl automatically convert to Common Stock upogualified public
offering of the Compang Common Stock provided that the size and priceugh public offering or a sale of all
substantially of the Company’s assets meet cectiteria.

The proceeds from the First Closing received omobet 1, 2012 were used to pay approximately $40¢30&pense
related to the transaction, repay $225,000 to Wedlgio Bank and the balance going to increase tmepanys working
capital.
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Common Stock Transaction$n October 2010, the Company and SlI entered irgarahase agreement, pursuant to w
the Company agreed to sell 1,400,000 Shares of Qohtock at a purchase price of $1.50 per shar§2dr00,00(
Subsequently the Company and SlI also enteredairRegistration Rights Agreement, pursuant to whieh Compan
granted SlI certain registration rights with redptx resale of the Shares. As a result of the d¢etiop of the S
Investment Transaction, Sll became the beneficialey of approximately 51.4 percent of the Companyltstandin
Common Stock.

The purchase agreement provided that for so lorf§jlasolds more than 50 percent of our outstandimgmon stock, (
our Board of Directors shall consist of seven memsiband (ii) SII will have the right to designatauf members of o
Board. In addition, the purchase agreement pravittiat for a period of three years following the€dhg, as long as ¢
continues to own at least 80 percent of its ComiBtutk acquired, Sll will have a right of first refl to purchas
additional securities which are offered and soldh® Company for the purpose of maintaining itxpetage interest
the Company.

On December 13, 2010 the company received Boadrettors and Shareholder approval to effect afong¢hree revers
stock split of its Common Stock no later than DelbenB1, 2010. Immediately prior to the reverselsgpit the compar
had 8,177,989 of Common Stock outstanding and inmtedgl following the reverse split the outstandisigares wel
approximately 2,725,996 (subsequently 218 sharee haen issued for rounding of fractional sharesitiag from thi
reverse split). All disclosures and amounts inctlderein have been retroactively restated to refiiecreverse split.

Common Stock Dividend RestrictiorsAs long as at least twitvrds of the shares of common stock into whichSeeie:
B Preferred Stock was converted remains held byfdtreer holders of such converted Series B PredeBt®ck, withot
the written consent or affirmative vote of the hevkl of threeguarters of the then outstanding votes of the shafehe
Series B Preferred Stock and the shares of the constock, the Company cannot institute any payraoash dividenc
or other distributions on any shares of commonkstoc

Stock Option Plans The Company has an Omnibus Equity Incentive Corsgtéon Plan (the “2008 Plangpproved b
shareholders in fiscal 2008, which is the succesgoity compensation plan to the Compang001 Stock Option Pl
(the “2001 Plan”).Pursuant to stockholder approval in September 20&2otal number of shares available for issu
under the 2008 Plan was increased to 500,000. Aepfember 30, 2012, 324,711 shares were avaflabfature grant
of nonqualified stock options, incentive stock ops, stock appreciation rights, restricted stoelstricted stock unit
performance shares, performance units and stoadizsards.

The 2008 Plan serves as the successor to our 2801d8 amended (the “Predecessor Planiy, no further awards st
be made under the Predecessor Plan from and bétaffiective date of the 2008 Plan. All outstagdimvards under tl
Predecessor Plan immediately prior to the effediae of the 2008 Plan shall be incorporated inéo2008 Plan and sh
accordingly be treated as awards under the 2008 Pmwever, each such award shall continue todwemed solely t
the terms and conditions of the instrument evidemsiuch grant or issuance, and, except as otheexgessly provide
in the 2008 Plan or by the Committee that admirsstiee 2008 Plan, no provision of the 2008 Plafi siffe@ct or otherwis
modify the rights or obligations of holders of sucborporated awards.

Stockbased compensation is measured at the grant dested lon the calculated fair value of the award,ismecognize
as an expense over the requisite employee sereigadp(generally the vesting period of the grant).

The Company measures the compensation cost agsbeidh shardased payments by estimating the fair value ofk
options as of the grant date using the Bl&ckoles option pricing model. The Company belietred the valuatic
technique and the approach utilized to developutigerlying assumptions are appropriate in calcudathe fair values
the Companys stock options granted during fiscal 2012 and 2@&klimates of fair value are not intended to preattue
future events or the value ultimately realized ty €mployees who receive equity awards.

Net loss for the fiscal years ended September 822 2and 2011 includes $69,000 and $61,000, respégtiof
compensation costs related to our stock-based amsafien arrangements.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 202Cihmpany granted a total of 34,000 non-statuttgksoptions with
exercise prices ranging from $1.31 to $2.12 aneshare weighted average fair values ranging fro@%to $1.79.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 201d,Gbmpany granted 4,000 netatutory stock options and 53,:
incentive stock options with exercise prices of581. The peshare weighted average fair value was $1.26 fdn bw
non-statutory stock option grants and incentivelstaption grants.
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In addition to the exercise and grant date prideth® awards, certain weighted average assumptlmatswere used
estimate the fair value of stock option grantsliated in the following table:

Fiscal 2012 Fiscal 2011 Fiscal 2011
Non-Statutory Stocl  Incentive Stock Non-Statutory Stoc
Options Options Options
Expected term (year. 7.1t0 7.5 6.5 6.7
Expected volatility 95.71 % to 104.89 98.5% 97.4%
Risk-free interest rat 1.13%to 1.47Y 2.46% 2.52%
Expected dividend 0 0 0

We estimate expected volatility based on histoneaékly price changes of our common stock for aopeequal to th
current expected term of the options. The figle interest rate is based on the United Stagestiry yields in effect at t
time of grant corresponding with the expected tefnthe options. The expected option term is the lmemof years w
estimate that options will be outstanding prioexercise considering vesting schedules and owrfdat exercise patterr

A summary of stock option activity under our sheesed compensation plan for the fiscal year enégteghber 30, 20:
is presented in the following tab

Weighted

Average

Remaining

Weighted Average Exerci¢c Contractual Life Aggregate Intrinsic
Options Price (Yrs.) Value

Outstandin-beg of yea 166,022 $6.89
Granted 34,000 $1.37
Exercisec 0
Forfeited (5,667) $1.34
Expired (19,066) $5.25
Outstanding Sept 30, 20 175,289 $6.18 6.3 $0
Exercisable Sept 30, 20. 112,418 $8.60 5.3 $0

As of September 30, 2012, the total remaining wgeized compensation cost related to unvested -$tas&
arrangements was $23,000 and is expected to bgmeed over a weighted average period of 1.21 years

There was no intrinsic value of stock options eiset during the fiscal year ended September 3@ 28Ino options we
exercised.

Warrants- In connection with a prior loan agreement, thenPany issued a thrgesar warrant to purchase up to 37,
shares of the Comparsytommon stock at an exercise price of $3.33 parestirough December 31, 2012. The fair v
of the warrant issued to PFGI II, LLC (see Noteb8\&e) was determined to be $79,000 with the follgnassumptions;
risk free interest rate of 1.7%, 2) an expecteal &f 3 years, and 3) an expected dividend yieldeob. The fair value
$79,000 was charged to the note discount and erktlit Additional Paid in Capital. The note discoisnibeing amortize
over the term of thirty six months and chargechterest expense.

In connection with certain other loans, the Compiasyed warrants to purchase 33,334 shares ofdhgénys Commo
Stock at an exercise price of 25% less than theageeprice of the Comparsycommon stock during the 20 days pric
the exercise date, provided, however, that theceseeprice shall not be below $2.25 per share hove $3.24 per sha
The warrants expired on December 12, 2012.

Non-controlling Interest Drive Thru is currently the general partner of ¢ingted partnership that was formed to dew
Drive Thru restaurants and Drive Thru sold theinited partner interest in one restaurant in Jurt2Qimited partne
contributions have been used to construct new uestés. Drive Thru, as a general partner, genenateives a
allocation of approximately 51% of the profit amd$es and a fee for its management services. quity énterest of th
unrelated limited partner is shown on the accompangonsolidated balance sheet in the stockholdepsity section as
non-controlling interest and is adjusted each petdoreflect the limited partnex’share of the net income or loss as we
any cash distributions to the limited partner fioe fperiod. The limited partner'share of the net income or loss in
partnership is shown as nepntrolling interest income or expense in the aquamying consolidated statement
operations. All inter-company accounts and transastare eliminated.
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10. Retirement Plan

The Company has a 401(k) profit sharing plan (tRkrfi”). Eligible employees may make voluntary contributidmghe
Plan, which may be matched by the Company, in asuatrequal to 25% of the employseontribution up to 6% of the
compensation. The amount of employee contributisnemited as specified in the Plan. The Compangymat it
discretion, make additional contributions to tharPbr change the matching percentage. The Conytidnyot make ar
matching contributions in fiscal 2012 or fiscal 201

11. Subsequent Events

At September 30, 2012 we classified $1,380,000sasts held for sale in the accompanying consotidagdance she:
These costs are related to a site in Firestonepr@dd which has been fully developed. On Novemiier2812 w
completed a sale leaback transaction on the property. The net salselesck proceeds of $1,380,000 were us
reduce the PFGI Il term loan by $765,000 and thente to increase our working capital.

On November 30, 2012 we purchased the real estaterlying an existing restaurant from our landlwd$760,000. |
connection with the real estate purchase we haterezhinto an additional sale leaseback agreenhamtis expected

close in January 2013 and we expect to recognizproeeeds of $870,000. We entered into an amentimehe PFGI

loan agreement whereby we will repay the remaithiag balance out of the sale leaseback proceedstfre closing o
this sale leaseback transaction.

On December 5, 2012 we entered into an agreemgnirthase a restaurant from a franchisee for & ¢dth1,250,00(
including the real estate and operating businesls an anticipated closing date of December 31, 202 will pay
$650,000 in cash and issue a short term note dd,$60. We have entered into a sale leasebackragredor the rei
estate that we expect will yield approximately $D,000 in net proceeds by March 31, 2013.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

During the two most recent fiscal years, Good Tirhas not had any changes in or disagreements tsihdepende
accountants on matters of accounting or finandégadldsure.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of DisclosaerControls and Procedures:Based on an evaluation of
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (fsedkin Rules 13a-15(e) and 138{e) under the Securities Excha
Act of 1934, as amended), as of the end of the @oyip fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, thepaags Chie
Executive Officer and Controller (its principal ex#ive officer and principal financial officer, mectively) hav
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controts@ncedures were effective.

Management’'s Report on Internal Control Over Finandgal Reporting: We are responsible for establishing
maintaining adequate internal control over finahcigporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 1%&{f) under th
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended)maintain a system of internal controls that isigieed to provid
reasonable assurance in a ceféective manner as to the fair and reliable prafian and presentation of the consolid
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtover financial reporting may not prevent or déteisstatement
Therefore, even those systems determined to betigffecan provide only reasonable assurance wipee to financii
statement preparation and presentation.

We conducted an evaluation of the effectivenessuofinternal control over financial reporting asS#ptember 30, 201
In making this evaluation, our management usedcttiteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsorimg@izations of tr
Treadway Commission (“COSO”) in Internal Contintegrated Framework. This evaluation included aerg of the
documentation of controls, evaluation of the desffactiveness of controls and a conclusion onékeduation. We ha
concluded that, as of September 30, 2012, the Coypanternal control over financial reporting waseetfve based ¢
these criteria.

This Annual Report does not include an attestatéport of the Companyg’registered public accounting firm regarc
internal control over financial reporting. Manage'® report was not subject to attestation by tleenanys registere
public accounting firm pursuant to rules of the StE@t permit the Company to provide only managemseamiport in thi
Annual Report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting: There have been no significant changes in the Coyipa
internal control over financial reporting that ooed during the Compang’fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2012
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelymaterially affect, the Comparg/internal control over financ
reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Nothing to report
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PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

Directors: The directors of the Company are as follo
Director Other Positions Held with
Since the Company
Geoffrey R. Bailey 61 1996 Member of the Mr. Bailey is a director of The Erie Coul
Compensation Committednvestment Co., which owns 99% of The Ba
Company. The principal business of The Be
Company is owning and operating 51 Arby’
restaurants as a franchisee, and The Bailey Cor
has also been a franchisee and joint venture paot
the Company since 1987. Mr. Bailey joined The
County Investment Co. in 1979. Mr. Bailey i
graduate of the University of Denver with
Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration.

Name Age Employment and Business Experienc

Mr. Bailey was selected to serve on our Boar
light of his substantial experience within
restaurant industry and his broad knowle
concerning corporate governance and managel

Neil Calvert 61 20121 Chairman of the Audi Mr. Calvert currently serves as an advisor to L

Committee Corporation International, a Londdrased helicopt:

leasing company (20ljgresent). Previously, N
Calvert held various executive positions in the (
Group, and a subsidiary, Heli One, where he
responsible for flight operations and mainteni
(1998-2011). As President of Heli One (2QfiBE1)
he had direct oversight of a Chief Financial Offj
responsibility for preparation & accuracy of finéad
statements, communication with the company’
auditors on all significant accounting policies
review of financials with the board. Additionallge
built the company into a $400 million business
over 1,000 employees around the world. He
served as Managing Director of the British opera
for CHC UK (1999-2003).

Mr. Calvert was selected to serve on our Boal
light of his various executive positions with m:
companies and his experience overseeing
assessing those compar' performance

David L. Dobbin 51 2010 Chairman of the Boar Mr. Dobbin serves as Chairman of the Boart
Small Island Investments Limited (20pdesent). |
addition, he serves as Chairman of the Boar
Welaptega Marine Ltd. (2008esent), a leadii
supplier of offshore mooring inspection syste
Prior to March 2012, he also served as Chairm
the Boards of Terra Nova Pub Groups Ltd., an
subsidiaries and affiliates, including Elephant
Castle Group, Inc. (20-2012).
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Previously, Mr. Dobbin served in several capac
with CHC Helicopter Corporation, the workd’
leading offshore helicopter services provider, bt
Canadian Ocean Resource Associates Inc
consulting firm specializing in international t
practice reviews in various sectors, third w
institutional support, and public/private partnépst
Mr. Dobbin holds a Bachelor of Commerce de
from Memorial University of Newfoundland.

Mr. Dobbin was selected to serve on our Boat
light of his substantial experience in the restat
industry and his experience as an investor ir
transportation, service, real estate, and hosy
sectors

Gary J. Heller

45

2010 Principal of Heathcote
Capital, LLC, financial

Gary J. Heller was appointed as a director of
Company effective upon the closing of Slinitial

advisor to the Company; investment transaction in December 2010. F
Prior Member of the Auditcurrently President of Heathcote Capital LLC, wl
Committee (2010-2012); the Company has engaged to provide fina

Prior Chairman of the

advisory services. Mr. Heller also serves as (

Compensation CommitteeOperating Officer of Il Mulino New York, whic

(2010-2012¥

operates and licenses fine dining Italian restdsi
Previously, Mr. Heller served as a Manag
Director of FTI Capital Advisors, LLC and a Direc
of Andersen Corporate Finance LLC. Mr. He
holds a BA in Economics from the University
Pennsylvania and an MBA in Finance from I
York University.

Mr. Heller was selected to serve on our Board iht
of his substantial experience in the restauranistrg
and his experience as a financial advisor an
investment banke

Boyd E. Hobacl

57

1992 President and Chit
Executive Officer

Mr. Hoback has served as our President and

Executive Officer since December 1992 and has
in the restaurant business since the age of 16
Hoback has been a vital part of the developme
the Company to a 4festaurant chain and has b
involved in developing and managing all areas e
Company. Mr. Hoback is an honors graduate ¢
University of Colorado in Finance.

Mr. Hoback was selected to serve on our Boa
light of his indepth understanding of our busir
and the restaurant industry and his position a:
President and Chief Executive Offic
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Eric W. Reinharc 54 2005 Member of the Audit an Mr. Reinhard serves as President of the Pepsi
Compensation CommitteeBottler's Association, a beverage associc
Prior Chairman of the management and consulting association (2006-
Board (2005-2010) present). Prior to June 2004 he was the Ge

Manager for the Pepsi Bottling GrogpGreat We:
Business Unit. While in this role, Mr. Reinhard '
also a member of the Pepsi Bottling Graup’
Chairmans Operating Council, a member of
Food Service Strategic Planning Committee, a
member of The Dr. Pepper Bottler Marke
Committee. Mr. Reinhard joined Pepsi Cola in 1
after four years with The Proctor & Gam
Distributing Company. Since 1984 he has
several field and headquarters positions inclu
Vice President/General Manager Pepigiton Tee
partnership (JV), General Manager Mdantic
business Unit, Area Vice President Retail Chan
Vice President Ofrremise Operations and Area \
President of Franchise Operations. Mr. Rein
holds a BA from Michigan State University and
completed the Executive Business Program a
University of Michigan.

Mr. Reinhard was selected to serve on our Boa
light of his substantial experience within the bexe
industry and his broad knowledge concer
corporate governance and managermnr

Alan A. Teran 67 20123 Member of the Audi Mr. Teran is currently a principal in multiple prie
Committee; Chairman of restaurants. He previously served on our Boanth
the Compensation 1994 to 2010. Mr. Teran also served as a Diredi
Committee Morton’s Restaurant Group, Inc. from 1994

February 2012. He served as president of the &
Cleaver restaurant chain from 1975 to 1981
served as a Director for Boulder Valley Natic
Bank and Charlie Brows’ Restaurants. He was 1
of the first franchisees of Le Peep Restaurants.
Teran graduated from the University of Akron
1968 with a degree in business.

Mr. Teran was selected to serve on our Board irt
of his substantial experience within the restat
industry, his experience as an investor in mul
private restaurants, and his prior service on
Board.

I Mr. Calvert was elected as a director on July 3,2 fill the vacancy created by the resignatibiKeith A. Radford effective June !
2012. On the same date, Mr. Calvert was appoierhairman of the Audit Committee, to succeedRédford in such capacit

2 Mr. Heller resigned as a member of the Audit Corteritand as chairman of the Compensation Committeetiee April 6, 2012, upc
the Compan's engagement of Heathcote Capital, LLC, a compé&mshizh Mr. Heller is the principal, as its finaatadvisor.

3Mr. Teran was elected as a director effective ApPBil 2012 to fill the vacancy created by the resigm of John F. Morgan on August 10,
2011. On the same date, Mr. Teran was appointach@smber of the Audit Committee and as the chairaidhe Compensation
Committee, to succeed Mr. Heller in both capacitiés. Teran also served on our Board from 19920b0.
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As set forth above, prior to March 2012, Messrs. Dolamd Heller each served as a director and exexuatificer o
Elephant & Castle Group Inc. On June 28, 2011plkdeat & Castle Group, Inc. and related subsidigigetiectively, th
“Elephant & Castle Group”filed a voluntary petition under Chapter 11 of tHeited States Bankruptcy Code. -
Elephant & Castle Group subsequently sold allofgsets in a sale under the bankruptcy proceedings

There are no family relationships among the dimscto between any director and any of our executffieers.

Geoffrey R. Bailey was originally elected to thedBd pursuant to contractual board representatgigigranted to The
Bailey Company in connection with its investmensimares of our Series A Convertible Preferred Stodl©96. Mr.
Bailey has continued to serve on the Board pursisacntractual board representation rights held ey Bailey Compar
and its affiliates (“The Bailey Group”) in conneanti with our Series B Convertible Preferred Stoodlaficing in February
2005 and the subsequent modification of those aotital rights in connection with the closing of mitial investment
transaction with Sll in December 2010, whereby Baéey Group is entitled to designate one individoaelection to ou
Board.

Eric W. Reinhard was originally elected to the Rbpursuant to contractual board representationigigianted to certain
investors in connection with our Series B Convégtireferred Stock financing in February 2005 dedsubsequent
maodification of those contractual rights in conmaciwith the closing of our initial investment tsaction with Sll in
December 2010, whereby Mr. Reinhard and his a#isiatre entitled to designate one individual foct&a to our Board.

Messrs. Calvert, Dobbin, Heller, and Teran wereioaidy elected to the Board pursuant to the dired&signation rights
granted to Sl under the Securities Purchase Ageeédated October 29, 2010 between the Companghrithe “Prior
Purchase Agreement”). The Prior Purchase Agreeprentdes that, for so long as SlI continues to awvfeast 50% of
our outstanding capital stock, (i) our Board shali consist of more than seven directors, and(lishall have the right to
designate four individuals for election to our Bhailhe Purchase Agreement between the Compangladdted June
13, 2012 reconfirms and continues SllI's directigieation rights as provided by the Prior Purchgeement. Pursuant
to both the Prior Purchase Agreement and the Psechgreement, Sll has also agreed to vote its shiamny election of
directors for one individual designated by The 8aiGroup and one individual designated by Mr. Reiditzad his
affiliates, in addition to the Investor’s four diter designees. Mr. Hoback is the seventh membeuoBoard.

See Item 13 “Certain relationships and relatedstiations” for additional discussion of these priovis. There are no
other arrangements or understandings between argntdirector and any other person under whichdha ctor was
elected or nominated.

Nominee selection proces®ur Board of Directors as a whole acts as the natimg committee for the selection of
nominees for election as directors. We do not lzaseparate standing nominating committee sinceegugre that our
director nominees be approved as nominees by aityayd our independent directors. The Board wihsider
suggestions by stockholders for possible futureinegs for election as directors at the next anmesdting when the
suggestion is delivered in writing to the corporsgeretary of the Company by April 15 of the yeamiediately preceding
the annual meeting.

The Board selects each nominee, subject to coo&bctominee designation and election rights held cleytair
stockholders, as discussed below, based on theneeiniskills, achievements and experience, with theatisie that th
Board as a whole should have broad and relevamriexge in high policymaking levels in business armbmmitment 1
representing the lontgrm interests of the stockholders. The BoardebeB that each nominee should have experiel
positions of responsibility and leadership, an ustdding of our business environment and a repatétr integrity.

The Board evaluates each potential nominee indaligand in the context of the Board as a wholee dbjective is to
recommend a group that will effectively contribtdeour long-term success and represent stockholtkrests. In
determining whether to recommend a director foelestion, the Board also considers the directaast pttendance at
meetings and participation in and contributionthioactivities of the Board.

When seeking candidates for director, the Boargitokuggestions from incumbent directors, managenstockholders
or others. The Board does not have a chartehéonbminating process.

The Company does not have a formal policy with réga the consideration of diversity in identifyidgector nominees,
but the Board strives to nominate directors wittagety of complementary skills so that, as a grabp Board will
possess the appropriate talent, skills, and exeetti oversee the Company’s business.

Communication with Directors: The Board welcomes questions or comments aboutndsoar operations. Thc
interested may contact the Board as a whole orcaxeyor more specified individual directors by seqgda letter to tF
intended recipientsttention in care of Good Times Restaurants Inttendion: Corporate Secretary, 601 Corporate G
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Golden, CO 80401. All such communications othentbommercial advertisements will be forwardedh appropriat
director or directors for review.

Leadership Structure: The Board does not have a policy regarding theraépa of the roles of Chief Executive Offis
and Chairman of the Board as the Board believissiit the best interests of the Company to makedetermination fror
time to time based on the position and directiothef Company and the membership of the Board. Mexy¢he Boar
has determined that separating these roles iseibéist interests of the Compasgtockholders at this time. The Bc
believes that this structure permits the Chief Exge Officer to focus on the management of the Gany’s day-today
operations.

Risk Oversight: Material risks are identified and prioritized by tBempanys management and reported to the Boar
oversight. The Board as a whole administers ther@se risk oversight function. The Board regularlyiesvs informatiol
regarding the Comparg/credit, liquidity, and operations, as well as fisks associated with each. In addition, the B
continually works, with the input of the Compasgxecutive officers, to assess and analyze theélikely areas of futur
risk for the Company.

Board Committees: The standing committees of the Board are the AGdinmittee, which is currently comprisec
Messrs. Calvert (Chairman), Reinhard, and Teran, thadCompensation Committee, which is currently posed o
Messrs. Bailey, Reinhard, and Teran (Chairman).didsussed under the heading “Nominee SelectioneBsiabove
there is no standing nominating committee of tharB@and instead the Board as a whole acts as thaating committe
for the selection of nominees for election as doex

Prior to his resignation from the Board effectivmd 30, 2012, Keith Radford served as chairmahefudit Committet
Prior to April 6, 2012, Gary Helleserved as a member of the Audit Committee and asrohn of the Compensati
Committee. Mr. Heller resigned from those positiginst not from our Board) on April 6, 2012 in cowctien with the
Company’s engagement of Heathcote Capital, LLCfasaacial advisor.

Audit Committee : The Audit Committee currently consists of Messrslv@a (Chairman), Reinhard, and Teran.
Board has determined that all of the members ofAthdit Committee are “independenigs defined by the NASDA
listing standards and by applicable SEC rulesaddition, the Board has determined that Mr. Caligeain audit committe
financial expert, as that term is defined by theCStles, by virtue of having the following attrilest through releva
experience: (i) an understanding of generally astkpccounting principles and financial statemefiisthe ability tc
assess the general application of such principlesmnection with the accounting for estimatesrueds, and reserves; (
experience preparing, auditing, analyzing, or eatahg financial statements that present a breadthievel of complexit
of accounting issues that are generally compatahilee breadth and complexity of issues that casaeably be expect
to be raised by the Compasyfinancial statements, or experience actively sugieg one or more persons engage
such activities; (iv) an understanding of intercahtrols and procedures for financial reportinggl &) an understandi
of audit committee functions. Prior to his resigo from the Board effective June 30, 2012, Ké&ttidford served as ¢
audit committee financial expert.

The function of the Audit Committee relates to @igiht of the auditors, the auditing, accounting] éinancial reportin
processes, and the review of the Compsaffiyiancial reports and information. In addititime functions of this Committ
have included, among other things, recommendinthéoBoard the engagement or discharge of indepéraietitors
discussing with the auditors their review of ther@anys quarterly results and the results of their awtit] reviewing tr
Companys internal accounting controls. The Audit Comneitigperates pursuant to a written Charter adopteth¢
Board. A current copy of the Audit Committee Charis available on our website at www.goodtimesbtsgom. Th
Audit Committee held five meetings during the fispear ended September 30, 2012.

Compensation Committee :The Compensation Committee currently consists ofdesBailey, Reinhard, and Te
(Chairman). The Board has determined that allhef mnembers of the Compensation Committee are “gmtl#gnt,”as
defined by the NASDAQ listing standards. The fimttof the Compensation Committee is to consider @etermine a
matters relating to the compensation of the Prasided Chief Executive Officer and other executifiécers, including
matters relating to the employment agreements. démpensation Committee held one meeting durindfitoal yea
ended September 30, 2012.

The Compensation Committee does not have a wr@teerter. The responsibility of the Compensation Grttee is t
review and approve the compensation and other tefmmmployment of our Chief Executive Officer andr mthe
executive officers, including all of the executigfficers named in the Summary Compensation Tablikeim 11 of thi
Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “Named Executivdic@fs”). Among its other duties, the Compensation Commn
oversees all significant aspects of the Compmmngompensation plans and benefit programs. The p€osatio
Committee annually reviews and approves corporagasgand objectives for the Chief Executive Offisezompensatic
and evaluates
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the Chief Executive Offices' performance in light of those goals and objestivdhe Compensation Committee
recommends to the Board the compensation and teriefimembers of the Board. The Compensation Cittesnha
also been appointed by the Board to administer28@8 Omnibus Equity Incentive Compensation Planichviis the
successor equity compensation plan to the Compa201 Stock Option Plan. The Compensation Coreaitioes n
delegate any of its authority to other persons.

In carrying out its duties, the Compensation Cortesitparticipates in the design and implementatioth @timateh
reviews and approves specific compensation prografie Compensation Committee reviews and detesrtine bas
salaries for the Named Executive Officers, and approves awards to the Named Executive Officerdeurhe
Company’s equity compensation plans.

In determining the amount and form of compensdiomNamed Executive Officers other than the Chiré&utive Officer
the Compensation Committee obtains input from théefCExecutive Officer regarding the duties, resgibifities, an
performance of the other executive officers and rémults of performance reviews. The Chief Exeeutfficer alsi
recommends to the Compensation Committee the ladesey sevels for all Named Executive Officers ahd award leve
for all Named Executive Officers under the Compangfuity compensation programs. No Named Execuffeer
attends any executive session of the Compensatom@ttee or is present during final deliberationgleterminations «
such Named Executive Officer'compensation. The Chief Executive Officer alsovjgles input with respect to 1
amount and form of compensation for the membeteeBoard.

The Compensation Committee has the authority tectir engage, at the Compagyexpense, any compensa
consultants or other advisers as it deems necesaafry out its responsibilities in determinirige tamount and form
executive and director compensation. For the Ifigear ended September 30, 2011, the Compensatiomiitee did nc
use the services of a compensation consultant har atdviser. However, the Compensation Commitée® reviewe
surveys, reports, and other market data againsthwihhas measured the competitiveness of the Coypaompensatic
programs. In determining the amount and form @fcetive and director compensation, the Compens&amnmittee he
reviewed and discussed historical salary infornrmeéie well as salaries for similar positions at caraple companies.

Directors' meetings and attendanceThere were five meetings of the Board of Directoetd during the last full fisc
year. No member of the Board of Directors attenfésder than 75% of the board meetings and appkcabmmitte
meetings. The annual meeting of shareholdersidoalf 2011 was attended by Messrs. Bailey, CaN@whbin, Heller
Hoback and Teran. Mr. Reinhard was absent.

A description of the standard compensation arraegesn(such as fees for Board and committee searidefor meetin
attendance) is set forth in the section entitled¢Etors’ Compensation” in Item 11 below.

Audit Committee Report: The Company’s management is responsible for tieeriat controls and financial reporting
process for the Company. The independent accasrfiarnthe Company are responsible for performimgnadependent
audit of the financial statements in accordancé génerally accepted auditing standards and te isseport on those
financial statements. The Audit Committee’s reslaility is to monitor and oversee these processes.

In this context, the Audit Committee met with maeagnt and the independent accountants to reviewliaodss the
Company’s financial statements for the fiscal yaailed September 30, 2012. Management represerttesl Aaidit
Committee that the financial statements were pegbar accordance with generally accepted accouptimgiples, and tr
Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed thefilsh statements with management and the indepéadeountants.

The Audit Committee has discussed with the indepehdccountants matters required to be discuss&dabgment on
Auditing Standards No. 61, Communication with Aud@mmittees. The Audit Committee has also receiliedvritten
disclosures and the letter from the independerdwadtants required by applicable requirements ofthiglic Company
Accounting Oversight Board regarding the indepehdenountants’ communications with the Audit Conmest
concerning independence and the Audit Committesud&ed with the independent accountants that fiirmd'spendence.

Based on the Audit Committeereview and discussions referred to above, theitATodmmittee recommended to
Board of Directors that the audited financial staets be included in the Company’s Annual Reporfform 10K for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2012 for filinghuiite SEC.

Executive officers: The executive officers of the Company are as fatlow

Name Age Position Date Began With Company
Boyd E. Hobacl 57 President & CEC September 198
Susan M. Knutso 54 Controller September 198
Scott G. LeFeve 54 VP of Operation: September 198
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Boyd E. Hoback. See the description of Mr. Hoback’s business erpeg under “Directors”.

Susan M. Knutson has been Controller since 1993 with direct resgmilityi for overseeing the accounting departm
maintaining cash controls, producing budgets, firela and quarterly and annual reports requirebediled with th
Securities and Exchange Commission, acting as tireipal financial officer of the Company, and pagpg al
information for the annual audit.

Scott G. LeFever has been Vice President of Operations since Au$@96, and has been involved in all phase
operations with direct responsibility for restaurservice performance, personnel and cost controls.

Executive officers do not have fixed terms and sevthe discretion of the Board of Directors. rEhare no family
relationships among the executive officers or doesc

Code of ethics The Company has adopted a Code of Business Cowthich applies to all directors, officers, empleg
and franchisees of the Company. The Code of Bssi@®nduct was filed as an exhibit to the Compadyinual Repo
on Form 10KSB for the fiscal year ended September 30, 20D3e Code of Business Conduct is also availablehe
Company’s website at www.goodtimesburgers.com.

Section 16(a) beneficial ownership reporting compdince: Under Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchangeofd934,
directors, executive officers and persons who ownenthan ten percent of our Common Stock mustassctheir initial
beneficial ownership of the Common Stock and aranges in that ownership in reports which must leel fivith the SEC
and the Company. The SEC has designated speciitlides for these reports and the Company mustifgem this proxy
statement those persons who did not file thesetepden due.

Based solely on a review of the reports filed Wit Company and written representations receivad fieporting persor
the Company believes that during the fiscal yeaedrSeptember 30, 2012 all Section 16(a) filingiregnents for its
officers, directors, and more than ten percentedf@ders were complied with on a timely basis, pkteat SIl and David
Dobbin filed a Form 4 on December 19, 2012 to refiwir beneficial ownership of the Series C Cotilsr Preferred
Stock acquired by Sll on September 28, 2012.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Executive CompensationThe following table sets forth compensation infotioafor 2012 and 2011 with respect to the
named executive officers:

Summary Compensation Table for 2012 and 201:

Nongqualified
Name Stock . Non-Equity Deferred
and Awards ~ Option Incentive Plan Compensation  All Other

Principal Position ~ Year Salary $ Bonusd $ Awards $3 Compensation $ Earnings $ Compensation ¢ Total $

Boyd E. Hobacl 2012 147,00 _ B 12,410 B B 18,063 177,47
President & Chie 1 -
Executive Offices 2041 133,000 _ - 17,816 _ _ 16,961 167,77
Scott G. LeFeve 2012 8754, ~ 2,309 ~ B 12,4352 104,28

Vice President o > .
Operations 2011 75,000 _ - 9,565 — _ 12,470 97,03t

1 The amount indicated for Mr. Hoback includes ammgbile allowance, lor-term disability and personal expens

2 The amount indicated for Mr. LeFever includes atruobile allowance and lo-term disability.

3 The value of stock option awards shown in this goitincludes all amounts expensed in the Compaimgsdial statements in 20
and 2012 for equity awards in accordance with thelapce of FASB ASC 718-10-30, Compensatiosteck Compensatic
excluding any estimate for forfeitures. The Comparaccounting treatment for, and assumptions madeeivaluations of, equi
awards is set forth in Note 1 of the notes to tbenffany’s 2012 consolidated financial statementsided in the Compang’Annua
Report on Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012er&kvere no option awards-priced in 2012

There were no shares of SARs granted during 20120dt nor has there been any nonqualified defezomapensation paid to a
named executive officers during 2012 or 2011. Tbhenpany does not have any plans that provide fecipd retirement paymet
and benefits at, following or in connection withirement.
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The following table sets forth information as op&amber 30, 2012 on all unexercised options presloawarded to the named executive office
Outstanding Equity Awards at 2012 Fiscal Yea-End

Option Awards Stock Awards
Equity Incentive
Plan Awards: Equity Incentive
Number of Number of Number of Number of Plan Awards:
Securities Securities Securities Shares or Market Value Number of Equity Incentive Plan Award
Underlying Underlying Underlying Units of  of Shares or Unearned Shares, Market or Payout Value of
Unexercised Unexercised Unexercised  Option Option Stock That Units of Stoct  Units or Other Unearned Shares, Units or
Options - Options - Unearned  Exercise Expiration Have Not That Have Nc Rights That Have Other Rights That Have Not
Name Exercisable (# Unexercisable (# Options (#) Price $ Date Vested (# Vested ($  Not Vested (# Vested ($
Boyd E. Hobacl 1,250 _ _ $8.1C 10/01/12 _ _ _ _
1,300 _ _ $10.8( 10/01/13 _ _ _ _
4,000 _ _ $9.3: 10/01/14 _ _ _ _
2,833 _ B $17.0¢  10/01/15 _ _ _ _
6,333 _ $19.1« 11/17/16 _ _ _ _
9,501 _ $4.41 11/14/18 _ _ _ _
0 4,551 _ $3.45  11/06/19 _ _ _ -
0 10,6472 _ $1.5¢ 12/13/20 _ _ _ _
5,000 $1.31 12/14/21
Scott G. LeFeve 420 _ _ $8.1C 10/01/12 _ _ _ _
860 _ _ $10.8( 10/01/13 _ _ _ _
1,917 B _ $9.3: 10/01/14 _ _ _ _
1,917 _ _ $17.0¢  10/01/15 _ _ _ _
1,917 _ $19.1« 11/17/16 _ _ _ _
5,669 _ $4.41 11/14/18 _ _ _ _
0 1,449 _ $3.48  11/06/19 _ _ _ _
0 7,985(2) _ $1.5¢ 12/13/20 _ _ _ _

1 The options were granted on November 6, 2009.hhees under the option agreements will become éxgrcisable on November 6, 2012, following the efthe 2012 fiscal yea

2 The options were granted on December 13, 2010.mMisgucontinued employment with the Company, theehander the option agreements will become fulgreisable or
December 6, 201:
(The numbers of options and the exercise pricesshio this table have been adjusted to effect tieefor three reverse stock split that occurred endinber 31, 2010
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The following table sets forth compensation infotiorafor the fiscal year ended September 30, 20itl2 respect to
directors:

Director Compensation Table for Fiscal Year 201:
Nonqualified
Deferred
Compensation  All Other

Fees Earne
or Paid in

Non-Equity

Option .
Stock p Incentive Plan

Cash ($) AV\(lg)rds A(av;v)alrdzs Compensation (!

Name Earnings§ Compensation. Total $
Geoffrey R. Bailey 1,700 _ 5,281 _ _ _ 6,981
David Dobbin 2,200 _ 5,281 _ _ _ 7,481
Gary Heller 2,100 _ 5,281 _ _ _ 7,381
Eric W. Reinharc 1,800 _ 5,281 _ _ _ 7,081
Keith Radford® 1,000 _ 5,281 _ _ _ 6,281
Alan Teran 1,800 _ 3,574 _ _ _ 5,374
Neil Calvert 800 _ 2,469 _ _ _ 3,269
Boyd E. Hobacl* _ _ _ _ _ _ 0

1 The value of stock option awards shown in this eoiuncludes all amounts expensed in the Compamegsidial statements
2012 for equity awards in accordance with the guigaof FASB ASC 718-10-30, CompensatioBteck Compensation, excludi
any estimate for forfeitures. The Company's actingrtreatment for, and assumptions made in theat&n of equity awards ¢
set forth in Note 1 of the notes to the Compan@E22consolidated financial statements includedhén@ompanys Annual Repo
on Form 1K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012rd kvere no option awards-priced in 2012

2 As of September 30, 2012, the following directoesdhoptions to purchase the following number ofrehaf our common stoc
Mr. Bailey 10,333 shares; Mr. Dobbin 5,667 shakds;Heller 5,667 shares; Mr. Reinhard 11,167 séiakér. Teran 2,000 shar
Mr. Calvert 2,000; and Mr. Hoback 45,414 sha

3 Mr. Radford resigned as a director effective adusfe 30, 2012. Mr. Radfc’'s options have expired and are no longer outstgn

4 Mr. Hoback is an employee director and does nativecadditional fees for service as a member oBiberd.

Directors' compensation: Each nonemployee director receives $500 for each Board iédibrs meeting attende
Members of the Compensation and Audit Committeegigdly each receive $100 per meeting attendedveider, wher
both Compensation and Audit Committee meetingshate at the same gathering, only $100 is paid tectbrs attendir
both committee meetings. Additionally, for the fisgear ended September 30, 2012, each directtr,thhé exception
Messrs. Calvert and Teran, received a statutory stock option to acquire 5,000 sharesah@on Stock at an exerc
price of $1.31 per share. Mr. Teran received astatutory stock option to acquire 2,000 sharesah@on Stock at ¢
exercise price of $2.12 per share in June 2012nwigewas elected to the Board to fill the vacaresulting from Joh
Morgan’s resignation. Mr. Calvert received a retatutory stock option to acquire 2,000 shares @h@on Stock at ¢
exercise price of $1.46 per share in September,20i8n he was elected to the Board to fill the magaresulting fror
Keith Radford’s resignation.

Employment Agreement: Mr. Hoback entered into an employment agreemerit ustin October 2001 and the term
the agreement were revised effective October 260¢dmpliance with Section 409A of the Internal Bewe Code. Tt
revised agreement provides for his employment asigent and chief executive officer for two yeamf the date of tt
agreement at a minimum salary of $190,000 per yeaminable by us only for cause. The agreemeaviges fo
payment of one yea’salary and benefits in the event that changewsfecship control results in a termination of
employment or termination other than for causeis Bigreement renews automatically unless spedifical renewed k
the Board of Directors. Mr. Hobacktompensation, including salary, expense allowanmeus and any equity award
reviewed and set annually by the Compensation Ctteeni Mr. Hobacks bonus, when applicable, is based or
Company’s achieving certain Earnings Before Inter€axes, Depreciation and Amortization (“EBITDAtgrgets for th
year.

As a condition to the closing of the initial SIvestment transaction, Mr. Hoback agreed to waiveaiterights under tt
employment agreement which would otherwise haveuadcto him as a result of the change in ownersbigrol of th
Company as a result of the transaction, includiisgright to terminate his employment within one iye&ithe change
control and trigger the severance payment descabede and his right to accelerate the vestindgawksoptions upon tt
change in control.

Other Employment Arrangements: Mr. LeFever is employed as an “employee at wdliid does not have a writ
employment agreement. His compensation, includalgry, expense allowance, bonus and any equitydawia reviewe
and approved by the Compensation Committee annubléyparticipates in a bonus program that is baseobth the
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company’s level of EBITDA for the year and achiaytertain operating metrics and sales targets.

Heathcote Agreement: On April 6, 2012, the Company entered into aaficial advisory services agreement '
Heathcote Capital LLC ("Heathcote"), pursuant tackiithe Company engaged Heathcote to provide exeldmancia
advisory services in connection with a possiblatetic transaction. No such transaction has yetroed, but th
Company continues to consider possible stratedarraitives. Gary J. Heller, a member of the CommaBoard ¢
Directors, is the principal of Heathcote. In fise@12, the Company paid a total of $48,600 in teddeathcote.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Ownership of common stock by principal stockholdersand management:The following table shows the benefic

ownership of shares of the Companyommon Stock as of December 17, 2012 by eaclopérsown by the Company

be the beneficial owner of more than five percenthe shares of the CompasyCommon Stock, each director and ¢

executive officer named in the Summary Compensafiable, and all directors and executive officersaagroup. Th

address for the principal stockholders and thectiire and officers is 601 Corporate Circle, Golde®, 80401

Holder Number of shares Percent of
Principal stockholders: beneficially owned class**
Small Island Investments Lt 2,094,23¢1 60.93%
The Bailey Co 273,8372 10.04%
The Erie Co. Investment C 338,73C2 12.42%
Directors and Officers:

Geoffrey R. Baile-Director 14,7663 *
David L. Dobbin-Director 2,099,904 60.99%
Gary J. Helle-Director 5,667° *
Boyd E. Hobac-Director/Officer 43,9640 1.59%
Sue M. Knutso-Officer 6,8477 *
Scott G. Lefeve-Officer 12,2798 *
Alan A. Teran- Director 35,069° 1.28%
Eric Reinhar-Director 109,33410 3.98%
Neil Calver-Director 2,000 *

All directors and executive officers as a groupé¢®sons including all thos 2 o
named above 2,330,029 65.24%

1 Small Island Investments Ltd. is owned and coratbby director David L. Dobbin and members of hisily.

2 The Bailey Company is 99% owned by The Erie Countestment Co., which should be deemed the beaéfisiner of the

Company’s Common Stock held by The Bailey Compamige Erie County Investment Co. also owns 194,680es of the

Company’s Common Stock in its own name. GeoffreyBRiley is a director and executive officer of ThReie County

Investment Co. Geoffrey R. Bailey disclaims betiafiownership of the shares of Common Stock hgldtie Bailey Company

and The Erie County Investment Co. Because obWwisership of only 26% of the voting shares of Thie Eounty Investment

Co., Paul T. Bailey disclaims beneficial ownersbfpthe shares of Common Stock held by The Bailejn@any and The Erie

County Investment C¢

Includes 10,333 shares underlying presently exabtésstock option:

Includes shares of Common Stock held beneficiaflySmall Island Investments Ltd. Also includes 9,&hares underlyin

presently exercisable stock options held by Mr. iob

Includes 5,667 shares underlying presently exdstasstock options

Includes 28,967 shares underlying presently exantésstock options

Includes 6,847 shares underlying presently exdslgsstock options

Includes 12,279 shares underlying presently exantgsstock options

Includes 2,000 shares underlying presently exdstdsstock options and 5,834 warrants to purchase stMr. Teran was electe

as a director effective April 10, 2012 to fill thacancy created by the resignation of John MorgeAugust 10, 2011

10 Includes 11,167 shares underlying presently exatésstock options and 12,500 warrants to purchimei.

11 Mr. Calvert was elected as a director on July 3,220 fill the vacancy created by the resignatibKeith Radford effective Jun
30, 2012.

12 Does not include shares of Common Stock held bein#§i by The Bailey Company and The Erie Countyestiment Co. |
those shares were included, the number of shar€@mimon Stock beneficially held by all directorsiaxecutive officers as a
group would be 2,668,759 and the percentage dfléss would be 74.729

*  Less than one percel

**  Under SEC rules, beneficial ownership includesehawer which the individual or entity has votingrivestment power and al
shares which the individual or entity has the righacquire within sixty day:

S W

© 0 N o O
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE.

Transactions with Related Persons

Our corporate headquarters are located in a bgildimned by The Bailey Company and in which The &alCompan
also has its corporate headquarters. We currb@he our executive office space of approximated@3 square feet frc
The Bailey Company for approximately $58,000 pearyeThe lease expires December 31, 2012 and weipet¢
extending the lease beyond 2012.

The Bailey Company was the owner of one franchisedd Times Drive Thru restaurant which is located dveland
Colorado. The Company purchased this restauraAtigust 2012 for a purchase price of approxima$d90,000. Th
Bailey Company was also previously the owner of reachised restaurant in Thornton, Colorado whigs closed i
October 2009. The Bailey Company had entered wim franchise and management agreements with uanchisi
royalties and management fees paid under thoseragrés totaled approximately $44,000 and $53,00théofiscal yeal
ending September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

In December 2010, the Company repaid an outstaridargfrom Golden Bridge, LLC (“Golden Bridge'l) the principe
amount of $185,000 plus accrued interest theredheramount of $18,000. Directors Eric Reinhard Atah Teran an
former directors Ron Goodson, David Grissen, arch&id Stark, who are all stockholders of the Corgpare the so
members of Golden Bridge, and Eric Reinhard issthle manager of Golden Bridge. The Compangpayment of tt
Golden Bridge loan was duly approved in advanceulnyBoard by the affirmative vote of members thémgbo did no
have an interest in the transaction.

On April 6, 2012, the Company entered into a finanadvisory services agreement with Heathcote @hbLC
(“Heathcote™), pursuant to which the Company endddeathcote to provide exclusive financial advisseyvices in
connection with a possible strategic transactip.such transaction has yet occurred, but the Caynpantinues to
consider possible strategic alternatives. Hea#fi®gervices to the Company may include identifyang contacting
potential acquisition targets and/or sources drfging for the Company, advising and assistingtbepany in evaluatir
various structures and forms of any transactiosistisg in the preparation of proposals and evaloaif offers, and
assisting the Company in negotiating the finanasglects of the transaction. In fiscal 2012, thm@any paid a total of
$48,600 in fees to Heathcote.

Gary J. Heller, a member of the Company’s BoarDicéctors, is the principal of Heathcote. Accoglin the Company
agreement with Heathcote constitutes a related pansaction and was reviewed and approved btiget Committee
of the Company’s Board of Directors. Mr. Heller didt participate in the Audit Committee’s considina of the
agreement and abstained from the committee’s wod@prove the agreement. Concurrently with the Gomw's
engagement of Heathcote, Mr. Heller resigned asrabraeof the Audit Committee and as Chairman ofGbenpensation
Committee, though he continues to serve on ourdoar

On June 13, 2012, the Company entered into thehBsecAgreement with Sll, pursuant to which the Camypagreed
issue and sell to SlI, and SllI agreed to purch4£8,934 shares of newly designated Series C CadbleeRreferred Stoc
for an aggregate purchase price of $2,000,001.48 $4.22 per share), subject to the satisfacifocertain conditior
precedent set forth in the Purchase Agreementheéitime the Company and Sl entered into the RaselAgreement, ¢
held 50.8% of our outstanding Common Stock. Initaig David L. Dobbin, the Chairman of our Boaisla principal ¢
Sll. Accordingly, the Purchase Agreement consgud related party transaction and was reviewedapptbved by tr
Audit Committee.

On September 28, 2012, we completed the sale andrise of 355,451 shares of Series C ConvertildfeiPed Stock 1
SlI for an aggregate purchase price of $1,500,080.a result of this issuance, Slibeneficial ownership interest in
Company increased from 50.8% to 60.9%. We alseredtinto a Supplemental Agreement with Sll, d&8edtember 2
2012, and further amended on October 16, 2012 upatso which we extended the time period for 8lcomplete it
purchase of the remaining shares of Series C CtiblePreferred Stock under the Purchase Agreematsuant to tt
Supplemental Agreement, as amended, Sl has agyemanplete its purchase of an additional 118,488es of Series
Convertible Preferred Stock, for an additional agaite purchase price of $500,000, on or before Mait¢l2013, at sut
time as the Company’s Board of Directors reasonaelgrmines, with 45 daygrior notice to Sll, that the Compe
requires such funds to maintain the minimum stotddrs’ equity required under NASDAQ Listing Rule 5550(loy
continued listing on The NASDAQ Capital Market.
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Each share of Series C Convertible Preferred Stcknvertible at the option of the holder into taltares of Commu
Stock, subject to certain artilution provisions. The shares of Series C Cotilvier Preferred Stock will accrue divider
at the rate of 8.0% per annum of the original igstee of $4.22 per share, with such accrued diddepayable quarter
In the event the Series C Convertible PreferreatiShas not been converted to Common Stock witl@nmbnth:
following the issuance thereof, thereafter (i) thee of the accrued dividends shall increase t6%%er annum from tl
date that is 18 months after the issuance thenetifaonverted or redeemed by the Company, andh@)Company mz
upon the approval of a majority of the disinterdsteembers of the Board of Directors redeem alromftime to time

portion of the Series C Convertible Preferred Stbgkpayment of its liquidation preference. Thersbaof Series

Convertible Preferred Stock also have additionaingorights, restrictions and provisions as disetbsn our Prox
Statement filed on August 10, 2012.

The Purchase Agreement reconfirms and continueditieetor designation rights granted to Sll undes Securitie
Purchase Agreement dated October 29, 2010 betvree@dmpany and SlI (the “Prior Purchase Agreemer@9th the
Purchase Agreement and the Prior Purchase Agregrmritle that, for so long as SlI continues to awifreast 50% of tt
Companys outstanding capital stock, (i) our Board shatlecansist of more than seven directors, and (lisBall have th
right to designate four individuals for election @or Board. Pursuant to both the Purchase Agreemmeth the Pric
Purchase Agreement, Sll has also agree to voshées in any election of directors for one indraddesignated by T
Bailey Group and one individual designated by MrinRard and his affiliates, in addition to the Intets four directc
designees. If either The Bailey Group or Mr. Remdhand his affiliates cease to own at least 600 $iéxes of tt
Companys Common Stock (adjusted for any stock splits, nevesplits, or similar capital stock transactioribn thi
foregoing designation rights will cease, and Sl$ lagreed to vote its shares in any election ofctlire in favor of
person, other than an SlI designee, who receivem#jority of votes of holders of Common Stock otfan SlI.

Neil Calvert, David L. Dobbin, Gary J. Heller, aAthn A. Teran are the current directors designate&ll. Geoffrey F
Bailey is the current director designated by ThédegaGroup, and Eric W. Reinhard is the currenedior designated |
the other Series B investors.

The Purchase Agreement further provides that,ddosg as Sl continues to hold at least 75% ofghares of Series
Convertible Preferred Stock and/or the shares ofiBon Stock issuable upon conversion thereof, Sllhave a right ¢
first refusal to purchase additional securities clihare offered by the Company on the same ternsffased for thi
purpose of maintaining its percentage ownershigrast in the Company as of the Closing of the ltaest Transaction.

Director Independence: The Company Common Stock is listed on the NASDAQ Capital Mankeder the tradir
symbol “GTIM”. NASDAQ listing rules require thatraajority of the Company’s directors be “indepertdginectors”as
defined by NASDAQ corporate governance standards.

The Board has determined that of the current direcMessrs. Bailey, Calvert, Reinhard, and Teranirdependel
directors under the NASDAQ listing standards, wihlessrs. Dobbin, Heller, and Hoback are not indepehdnder suc
standards. The Board has also determined thatcddhle three current members of the Audit Commaitte“independent”
for purposes of Section 10A(m)(3) of the Securiieshange Act of 1934 under the rules of the S&earand Exchany
Commission (“SEC”"promulgated thereunder. In addition, the Boardipresly determined that Mr. Radford qualifiec
an independent director under both the NASDAQngtstandards and SEC rules until his resignatiom fthe Boar
effective June 30, 2012, and that Mr. Heller quadifas an independent director under both the NASII#tiRg standarc
and SEC rules prior to the Company’s engagemeHeathcote as the Company’s financial advisor oril&p2012.

The Compensation Committee currently consists ofskée<Bailey, Reinhard, and Teran, each of whomBbard ha
determined to be “independenihder the NASDAQ listing standards. The Board dogishave a standing nominat
committee. Rather, our Board of Directors as alevlagts as the nominating committee for the selpabf nominees f
election as directors.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS: The Board of Directors appointed HEIN & ASSOCIATESP as thi
Companys independent auditors for the fiscal year endqateBeber 30, 2011 and fiscal year 2012, and to parfithe
accounting services. Representatives of HEIN & @SBATES LLP are expected to be present at the dnmeating o
shareholders, and will have the opportunity to malstatement if they so desire and to respondpicogpate sharehold
questions.
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Audit Fees: The aggregate fees billed for professional servieaslered by HEIN & ASSOCIATES LLP for its audi
the Companys annual financial statements for the fiscal yested September 30, 2012, and its reviews of trenia
statements included in the Company’s Form&s0for fiscal year 2012 were $76,095 compared 0482 in fees for tt
fiscal year ended 2011.

Audit Related Fees:There were no aggregate fees billed by HEIN & ASSOES LLP for assurance and rela
services that are reasonably related to the pediocen of the audit or review of our financial stagets and are n
reported under “Audit Fees” for the fiscal yeardeh September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011.

Tax Fees:The aggregate fees billed by HEIN & ASSOCIATES LidP the preparation and review of the Company'
returns for the fiscal year ended September 302 20dre $14,000 compared to $10,500 in fees fofiioal year ende
September 30, 2011.

All Other Fees: The aggregate fees bhilled to the Company for &koservices rendered by HEIN & ASSOCIATES |
for fiscal year 2012 were $15,270 compared to $30tj0 fees for the fiscal year ended Septembe2801. These fe
are primarily related to a 401(k) plan audit .

Audit Committee: Policy on PreApproval Policies of Auditor Services: Under theyisions of the Audit Committ
Charter, all audit services and all permitted aoidit services (unless subject to a de minimis ti@e allowed by lawn
provided by our independent auditors, as well &s fend other compensation to be paid to them, bristpproved |
advance by our Audit Committee. All audit and otkervices provided by HEIN & ASSOCIATES LLP duritite fisca
year ended September 30, 2012, and the relateddediscussed above, were approved in advancedndance with SE
rules and the provisions of the Audit Committee @ra There were no other services or productsigea by HEIN &
ASSOCIATES LLP to us or related fees during thedig/ear ended September 30, 2012 except as distabsve.

Auditor Independence: The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors hassidered the effect that the provision of
services described above under the caption “Alle®tffrees’may have on the independence of HEIN & ASSOCIA
LLP. The Audit Committee has determined that psimvi of those services is compatible with maintainithe
independence of HEIN & ASSOCIATES LLP as the Conymprincipal accountants.
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ITEM 15.

PART IV
EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following exhibits are furnished as part ostheport:

Exhibit

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.1

4.2

10.1

10.2

10.3

104

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8
10.9

10.10

Description

Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant (prevsty filed on November 30, 1988 as Exhibit 3.1 ba
registrant’'s Registration Statement on Form S-1Be (No. 33-25810:-A) and incorporated herein
reference

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of the Regiat dated January 23, 1990 (previously filed amuan
18, 1990 as Exhibit 3.1 to the registrant’s Curfi@aport on Form 8-K (File No. 00D8590) and incorporat
herein by reference

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation (previousiled as Exhibit 3.5 to the registrés Annual Report ¢
Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended Septemberl396 and (File No. 00@8590) incorporated herein
reference

Restated Bylaws of Registrant dated November 77 1@®eviously filed as Exhibit 3.6 to the regist’s
Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal yeadesh September 30, 1997 (File No. QB590) an
incorporated herein by referenc

Restated Bylaws of Registrant, amended as of Au@dst2007 (previously filed as Exhibit 3/1 to
registrant's current report on Form 8-K dated Atugds 2007 (File No. 00@8590) and incorporated herein
reference

Certificate of Change of Good Times Restaurants ¢fiqpreviously filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the reg#st’s
Form (K Report dated January 12, 2011 (File No.-18590) and incorporated herein by referet
Certificate of Designations, Preferences, and RigiitSeries B Convertible Preference Stock of Gbindes
Restaurants Inc. (previously filed as Exhibit 1the Amendment No. 6 to Schedule 13D filed by Thie
County Investment Co., The Bailey Company, LLLP &sdil T. Bailey (File No. 0082729) on February 1
2005 and incorporated herein by referer

Certificate of Designations, Preferences, and RiglitSeries C Convertible Preferred Stock of Goodet
Restaurants dated September 17, 2012 (previously fis Exhibit 3.1 to the registrant’s FormrK8Repor
dated September 20, 2012 (File No.-18590)

1992 Incentive Stock Option Plan, as amended (pusly filed as Exhibit 4.9 to the registr's Annua
Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year endedt&@aper 30, 1998 (File No. 0AB590) and incorporat
herein by reference

1992 Noi-Statutory Stock Option Plan, as amended (previdiilsly as Exhibit 4.10 to the registr’s Annua
Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year endedt&aper 30, 1998 (File No. 0AB590) and incorporat
herein by reference

Employment Agreement dated October 3, 2001 betweregistrant and Boyd E. Hobs

Wells Fargo Credit Agreement (previously filed aghibit 10.17 to the registrant's Annual Report amrfr 1(-
KSB for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008 [#o. 00(-18590) and incorporated herein by referel
Form of Option Agreement (previously filed as Exhib0.18 to the registrant's Annual Report on Fdi€-
KSB for the fiscal year ended September 30, 200é (fo. 00(-18590) and incorporated herein by referel
Form of Option Grant Notice (previously filed asHibit 10.19 to the registrant's Annual Report omnfrd.(-
KSB for the fiscal year ended September 30, 200d (fo. 00(-18590) and incorporated herein by referel
Cash Bonus Plan for Boyd Hoback (previously filsdgxhibit 10.20 to the registrant's Annual ReporFormn
10-KSB for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2080k No. 00018590) and incorporated herein
reference

Securities Purchase Agreements (previously filetherregistrant's Current Report on For-K dated Janua
3, 2005 (File No. 0C-18590) and incorporated herein by referel

Amendment to Securities Purchase Agreement (preljidiled as Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant's Fo8-K
Report dated January 27, 2005 (File No.-18590) and incorporated herein by referer

2001 Stock Option Plan, as amended (previouslyd file Exhibit 99.1 to the registr’s Registration Statem
on Form &8 filed on May 23, 2005 (Registration No. --125150) and incorporated herein by referei
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Exhibit
10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14
10.15
10.16
10.17
10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24
10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

Description
Conversion of Series B Convertible Preferred S{pckviously filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the registfariorm ¢

K Report dated June 8, 2006 (File No. -18590) and incorporated herein by referel

Loan Agreement and Promissory Note (previouslydfées Exhibit 10.1 and 10.2 to the registrant's F8-K
Report dated August 7, 2006 (File No. -18590) and incorporated herein by referer

Acceleration of Vesting of Stock Options and ForinResale Restriction Agreement (previously filec
Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant's Form 8-K ReportedaAugust 8, 2006 (File No. 0A®8590) and incorporat
herein by reference

Expansion of Loan Agreement and Promissory Notevipusly filed as Exhibit 10.1 and 10.2 to
registrant's Form-K Report dated March 15, 2007 (File No. -18590) and incorporated herein by refere
Loan Agreement and Promissory Note (previoushdfie Exhibit 10.1 and 10.2 to the registrant's F8-K
Report dated May 7, 2007 (File No. (-18590) and incorporated herein by referet

Amendment No. 1 to Loan Agreement and Promissorte Njoreviously filed as Exhibit 10.1 and 10.2 te
registrant's Form-K Report dated May 10, 2007 (File No. (-18590) and incorporated herein by referet
2008 Omnibus Equity Incentive Compensation Plae\jpusly filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the regist’'s Forn
8-K Report dated January 29, 2008 (File No.-18590) and incorporated herein by referer

Employment Agreement of Boyd E. Hoback (previouillyd as Exhibit 10.1 to the registr’s Form K
Report dated January 29, 2008 (File No.-18590) and incorporated herein by referer

Letter Agreement between Good Times Drive Thru laed CEDA Enterprises, Inc. (previously filed
Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant’s Form 8-K ReportedhMarch 12, 2008 (File No. 0A®B590) and incorporat
herein by reference

Letter Agreement between Good Times Drive Thru boed CEDA Enterprises, Inc. and CEJ Investm
LLC (previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the regestt's Form 8-K Report dated March 12, 2008 (File D@0
18590) and incorporated herein by referet

Amended and Restated Loan Agreement (previousdy fils Exhibit 10.1 to the registr's Form -K Repor
dated July 2, 2008 (File No. C-18590) and incorporated herein by referel

Promissory Note by Good Times Drive Thru Inc. anob Times Restaurants Inc. payable to PFGI I,
(previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the registrarfform 8-K Report dated July 2, 2008 (File No. a@%90
and incorporated herein by referen

Departure of Management Employees, Transfer of D@weént Rights and Suspension of Expar
(previously filed in the registrant's Form 8-K Repalated June 26, 2008 (File No. 008590) an
incorporated herein by referenc

Suspension of Development Agreement previouslyd fis Exhibit 10.41 to the registr's Form 1-KSB
Report dated December 26, 2008 (File No.-18590) and incorporated herein by referel

Results of Operations, Triggering Events and Oteeents (previously filed as the registrant's For-K
Report dated January 20, 2009 (File No.-18590) and incorporated herein by referer

Loan Agreement, Promissory Note, Warrant, Interitoeddhgreement and First Amendment to Amended
Restated Promissory Note (previously filed as Exhith.1, 10.1, 10.2, 10.3 and 10.4 to the regisgdorm 8
K Report dated April 20, 2009 (File No. (-18590) and incorporated herein by referer

Agreement between Good Times Restaurants Inc. aistbblian Ventures Inc. (previously filed as Exhilfit1
to the registrant’'s Form 8-K Report dated August 2809 (File No. 000-8590) and incorporated herein
reference

Letter Agreement between Good Times Restaurants dnd PFGI I, LLC dated December 14, 2
(previously filed as Exhibit 10.33 to the regiswats Annual Report on Form 1KR-dated December 29, 2C
(File no. 00--18590) and incorporated herein by referer

Promissory Note and Warrant dated January 19, Zpiéviously filed as Exhibits 4.1 and 10.1 to
registrant's Form 8-K Report dated January 21, 2(Hi2 No. 00018590) and incorporated herein
reference

Loan Agreement, Convertible Secured Promissory Moig Warrants (previously filed as Exhibits 4.1,1
and 10.2 to the registrant’'s Form 8-K Report ddtebruary 3, 2010 (File No. 0aB590) and incorporat
herein by reference
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Exhibit
10.31
10.32
10.33

10.34

10.35
10.36

10.37

10.38
10.39
10.40
10.41
14.1
211
23.1
311

31.2
32.1

Description
First Amendment to Loan Agreement, Convertible $egyromissory Note and Warrants (previously fie

Exhibits 4.1, 10.1 and 10.2 to the registrant’snr&-K Report dated April 6, 2010 (File No. 028590) an
incorporated herein by referenc

Securities Purchase Agreement dated October 29) g@réviously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the regist's
Form &K Report dated November 3, 2010 (File No. -18590) and incorporated herein by referer
Registration Rights Agreement dated December 180 Zpreviously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the regst’s
Form (K Report dated December 17, 2010 (File No.-18590) and incorporated herein by referer

Loan and Credit and Loan Agreement dated as of mbee 13, 2010 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.1tle
registrant's Form 8-K Report dated December 17,02(Hile No. 00018590) and incorporated herein
reference

Consent and Agreement dated as of December 13, @d&0iously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the regist’s
Form &K Report dated December 17, 2010 (File No.-18590) and incorporated herein by referer
Consent and Waiver dated as of December 13, 2020i¢usly filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the registrs Form ¢
K Report dated December 17, 2010 (File No.-18590) and incorporated herein by referer

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit éxgent and Waiver of Defaults and Second Ame
and Restated Term Note of December 27, 2011 (prelidiled as Exhibit 10.1 and 10.2 to the regista
Form ¢-K Report dated December 27, 2011 (File No.-18590)

Engagement Letter (previously filed as Exhibit 1thlhe registra’s Form K Report dated April 11, 20:
(File No. 00(-18590) and incorporated herein by referel

Securities Purchase Agreement dated June 13, ped@dusly filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the registr's Form ¢
K Report dated June 19, 2012 (File No.-18590)

Supplemental Agreement dated September 28, 20&Ri¢pisly filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the registr's Forn
8-K Report dated October 1, 2012 (File No. -18590)

Amendment to Supplemental Agreement dated October2@12 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to
registran’'s Form -K Report dated October 16, 2012 (File No. -18590)

Code of Ethics (previously filed as Exhibit 14.1tte registrant's Annual Report on Form-KSB for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2003 (File N0-18590) and incorporated herein by referei
Subsidiaries of registrant (previously filed as Bih21.1 to the registra’s Annual Report on Form -KSB
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1998 (#ae00(-18590) and incorporated herein by referet

*Consent of HEIN & ASSOCIATES LLI

*Certification of Chief Executive "Officer pursuart 18 U.S.C. Section 13:
*Certification of Controller pursuant to 18 U.S.Eection 135(

*Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Coatier pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1:

*Filed herewith
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the ExgjgsAct, the registrant caused this report to geesl on its behalf by

the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: December 28, 20:

GOOD TIMES RESTAURANTS INC.

[/s/ Boyd E. Hoback
Boyd E. Hobacl

President and Chief Executive Offic

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this repostiieen signed below by the following persons oralbeti the registrar

and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s David L. Dobbin
David L. Dobbin, Chairma
Date: December 28, 2012

/s Geoffrey R. Bailey
Geoffrey R. Bailey, Directc
Date: December 28, 20:

/s Gary J. Heller
Gary J. Heller, Directc
Date: December 28, 20:

/s/ Boyd E. Hoback
Boyd E. Hoback, Director ar

President and CEO
Date: December 28, 20:

/9l Susan M. Knutson

Susan M. Knutson, Controller a
Principal Financial Officer
Date: December 28, 20:

/9 Neil Calvert
Neil Calvert, Directol
Date: December 28, 20:

/s Eric W. Reinhard
Eric W. Reinhard, Directc
Date: December 28, 20:

/s Alan A. Teran

Alan A. Teran, Directo
Date: December 28, 2012
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference ofreport dated December 28, 2012, accompanyir
consolidated financial statements of Good Timegdeants, Inc., also incorporated by referencené
Form S-8 Registration Statements with registratiombers 333-60813, 333-98407, and 325150 an
Form S-3 Registration Statements with registratiombers 333-122890 and 3385189 of Good Tim
Restaurants, Inc., and to the use of our nametandtatements with respect to us, as appearing tim
heading “Experts” in the Registration Statements.

/9 Hein & Associates LLP
Hein & Associates LLP

Denver, Colorado
December 28, 2012



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Boyd E. Hoback, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K ob&dimes Restaurants Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contairuatrye statement of a mate
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to mekstatements made, in light of
circumstances under which such statements were made, sleading with respect
the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, andr dthancial informatio
included in this report, fairly present in all maténiaspects the financial conditic
results of operations and cash flows of the registardf, and for, the periods presel
in this report;

4, The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsible fatablishing an
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as dkfin&xchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-5(e)) and internal control over financial repagtifs defined in Exchan
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, @edasuch disclost
controls and procedures to be designed under our ssipervto ensure th
material information relating to the registrant, imthg its consolidate
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within thosiéiesn particularl
during the period in which this report is being [ae;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial repgytior caused such inter
control over financial reporting to be designed emdur supervision, to provi
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability ofnéiiz reporting and tt
preparation of financial statements for external psegoin accordance w
generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registiadisclosure controls and procedi
and presented in this report our conclusions abouteffectiveness of tt
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end gpdlied covered by tr
report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registsamternal control ov
financial reporting that occurred during the registis most recent fiscal quar
(the registrans fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual tepbat ha
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to matériaffect, the registrant’
internal control over financial reporting; and



5. The registrans other certifying officer and | have disclosed, basacdur most rece
evaluation of internal control over financial refyog, to the registrant’ auditors and ti
audit committee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesseh@design or operation
internal control over financial reporting which asmasonably likely to advers:
affect the registrarg’ ability to record, process, summarize and report fiai
information; and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves ngeraent or other employe
who have a significant role in the registranihternal control over financ
reporting.

Date: December 28, 2012

/s/ Boyd E. Hoback
Boyd E. Hoback
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF THE CONTROLLER
I, Susan M. Knutson, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K ob&dimes Restaurants Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contairuatrye statement of a mate
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to mekstatements made, in light of
circumstances under which such statements were made, sleading with respect
the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, andr dthancial informatio
included in this report, fairly present in all maténiaspects the financial conditic
results of operations and cash flows of the registardf, and for, the periods presel
in this report;

4, The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsible fatablishing an
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as dkfin&xchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-5(e)) and internal control over financial repagtifs defined in Exchan
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, @edasuch disclost
controls and procedures to be designed under our ssipervto ensure th
material information relating to the registrant, imthg its consolidate
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within thosiéiesn particularl
during the period in which this report is being [ae;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial repgytior caused such inter
control over financial reporting to be designed emdur supervision, to provi
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability ofnéiiz reporting and tt
preparation of financial statements for external psegoin accordance w
generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registiaisclosure controls and procedi
and presented in this report our conclusions abouteffectiveness of tt
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end opdhied covered by tF
report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registsairiternal control ow
financial reporting that occurred during the registis most recent fiscal quar
(the registrans fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual tggbat ha
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to matériaffect, the registrant’
internal control over financial reporting; and



5. The registrans other certifying officer and | have disclosed, basacdur most rece
evaluation of internal control over financial refyog, to the registrant’ auditors and ti
audit committee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesseh@design or operation
internal control over financial reporting which asmasonably likely to advers:
affect the registrarg’ ability to record, process, summarize and report fiai
information; and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves ngeraent or other employe
who have a significant role in the registranihternal control over financ
reporting.

Date: December 28, 2012

/s/ Susan M. Knutson
Susan M. Knutson
Controller




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on FormK.@f Good Times Restaurants Inc. |
“Company”) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012 as filgkd the Securities al
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “RepdyBoyd E. Hoback, as Chief Execut
Officer of the Company, and Susan M. Knutson, as Chatrof the Company, each here
certifies, pursuant to and solely for the purpose oJ18.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to 9t
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the bestyknowledge and belief:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of secti3(a) or 15(d) of ti
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m o(d3pand

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly prasenn all material respects, -
financial condition and results of operations of @w@mpany.

/9 Boyd E. Hoback /9 Susan M. Knutson
Boyd E. Hobacl Susan M. Knutso
Chief Executive Office Controller (principal financial officel

December 28, 201 December 28, 201



